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Vision
To be a globally recognised professional accountancy body bringing value to the 
members, the profession and the wider community.

Mission
To create a Dynamic Institute
To develop a Vibrant Profession
To build a Bold ICPAS

 
About the Institute

Established in 1963, Institute of Certified Public Accountants of 
Singapore (ICPAS) is the national accountancy body that develops, 
supports and enhances the integrity, status and interests of the 
profession. ICPAS is the largest professional body in Singapore.
 
ICPAS accords the CPA Singapore designation. A Certified 
Public Accountant Singapore (CPA Singapore) is a professional 
who possesses the relevant work experience in addition to a 
recognised accountancy qualification. CPAs Singapore are 
recognised for their professionalism, technical expertise 
and integrity.
 
ICPAS’ international outlook and connections are reflected 
in its membership of regional and international professional 
organisations like the International Federation of 
Accountants (IFAC), International Innovation Network 
(IIN), ASEAN Federation of Accountants (AFA), and 
Asia-Oceania Tax Consultants’ Association.

The education arm of ICPAS, SAA Global Education 
(SAA-GE), previously known as The Singapore 
Accountancy Academy, was established in 1985 
with a vision to service and foster the needs of 
the accountancy industry. SAA-GE has a track 
record of more than 25 years as a leading 
accountancy education provider, attracting 
and developing talent for the accountancy 
profession on an international level. There 
are currently more than 6,000 part-time and 
full-time students studying at SAA-GE, 
with most originating from Singapore, 
China, Vietnam, Myanmar, Indonesia, 
Philippines and other countries within 
the Asia-Pacific region.



“In 2013, the Institute will celebrate its  
50th anniversary. As the national accountancy 
body, ICPAS has been instrumental in the 
development of the accounting profession for 
the past five decades.”



Building on Our  
Strong Leadership





Dear MeMbers

As the accountancy landscape continues to evolve rapidly, 
ICPAS has proactively made bold strategic changes to keep 
in step with industry developments. I am pleased that the 
Institute continued to effect transformative change, making 
progress in key areas during 2012. 

A MEMBER-CENTRIC ORGANISATION 
FOCuSSED ON MEMBER ENGAGEMENT
Bearing in mind that more than 60 per cent of our members 
are professional accountants in business who take on diverse 
roles in commerce, ICPAS focussed its efforts on delivering 
programmes catered to their specific needs. The ICPAS Breakfast 
Talk series was launched in October 2012 as a platform for 
members to broaden their knowledge, learn from domain 
experts and expand their professional network. 

Throughout the year, the Institute continued to create 
opportunities for professional development and networking. 
Apart from the many Continuing Professional Education 
(CPE) courses, the Institute organised thematic large-scale 
seminars including the Seminar on Observations by the 
Financial Statements Review Committee and the ICPAS 
Budget 2012 update and its Tax Implications seminar.  

Social activities are just as important in fostering ties within 
the accounting fraternity. Our annual CPA Games continues 

to garner enthusiastic participation from the profession, with 
new categories and participating firms being added every year. 
Our roster of social events continues to be very well received 
by members. 

Close to one quarter of our members comprise senior finance 
professionals such as Chief Financial Officers (CFOs) and 
Financial Controllers. The Institute has a strategic focus on creating 
resources to support this segment including research reports, 
seminars and forums targeted at current and aspiring CFOs.  

With almost four in ten ICPAS members aged 35 and below, 
the Institute formed the Young Professionals Advisory 
Committee (YPAC) in June 2012 to engage young ICPAS 
members and support them in actualising their values and 
aspirations.  Together with YPAC, the Institute has conducted 
a comprehensive Membership Survey to better understand 
our members’ needs and tailor our initiatives and offerings 
accordingly.

FOSTERING A VIBRANT ACCOuNTING 
PROFESSION 
With productivity identified as one of the key enablers of 
growth for Singapore, ICPAS has established avenues and 
facilitated schemes that support the accountancy profession’s 
efforts to boost productivity. The Industry Development team 
facilitates Small and Medium Practitioners’ (SMPs) adoption of 
government productivity schemes. The ICPAS-SAP Productivity 
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“ICPAS has proactively made bold strategic changes to  
keep in step with developments. In 2012, the Institute  

continued to effect transformative change, making  
progress in key areas.”

Scorecard, which helps firms benchmark themselves against 
the industry in key areas of productivity, will be ready in 2013.

We are committed to supporting SMPs in their growth and 
helping them cope with changing regulations and a challenging 
business environment. SMPs serve mainly Small and Medium-
sized Entities (SMEs), which constitute the bulk of all enterprises 
in Singapore. By supporting SME clients, SMPs have a crucial 
role to play in contributing to the health of the economy. 

In 2012, the Institute rolled out the Quality Assurance  
Framework for SMPs, which provides a holistic, structured 
and member-oriented approach to SMP support. One of the 
key initiatives under the Quality Assurance Framework is 
supporting SMPs in their implementation of the Singapore 
Standard on Quality Control 1 (SSQC 1). We recognise that 
given their smaller size, SMPs require more support and 
resources in implementing SSQC 1. We have put in place a 
number of programmes to help them in this area. 

Addressing the talent shortage faced by SMPs, ICPAS also 
collaborated with the Workforce Development Agency 
(WDA) to roll out the Accounts Assistant Place-and-Train 
Programme (AAPnT), which trains mid-career jobseekers 
for the accountancy profession. 

A DynAMIC nATIOnAl ACCOunTAnCy 
BODy AnD KEy GOvErnMEnT PArTnEr
The Institute made significant progress in leadership renewal 
in 2012, with seven new Council Members, comprising one-
third of the Council, coming on board. Approximately half 
of the new Council Members are aged below 45. leadership 
renewal and succession planning will continue to be key focus 
areas for the Institute as we step up transformation efforts and 
drive change.

In november 2012, the Singapore Accountancy Commission 
(SAC) Bill, which sets out to establish the SAC and outlines the 
development framework for the accountancy sector, was read 

in Parliament. The Bill names ICPAS as the designated entity to 
register an applicant as a Chartered Accountant of Singapore.

As a key player in the development of the accountancy 
sector, ICPAS will continue to work closely with Government 
stakeholders towards our common vision to make Singapore 
a global accountancy hub.  

lOOKInG AhEAD
The Institute has completed its strategic planning exercise. The 
Strategic Plan for 2013 to 2015 will provide strategic focus and 
direction for the Institute’s activities. The mid-term plan will 
keep us on track as we continue to work towards our vision 
to be a globally recognised professional accountancy body, 
bringing value to our members, the profession and the wider 
community.  

2012 has been a year of growth and preparation. With the 
accountancy landscape changing rapidly, we must forge ahead 
to stay relevant and deliver value to members and stakeholders. 
I would like to thank all our members for their firm support 
as we continue to move with the times to serve them better.  

Teo Ser Luck
Advisor
Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore
Minister of State for Trade and Industry 
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Dear MeMbers

This annual report is titled “Moving with the Times”, and 
reflects the rapidly changing accountancy landscape and the 
decisive actions we have taken in response to the change. 

STRENGThENED INFRASTRuCTuRE TO 
SERVE YOu BETTER
In 2012, we continued to focus on organisational realignment 
and strengthening our infrastructure as we prepare for 
further growth. We established an experienced senior 
management team who will drive strategic growth, leading 
core functions in the Institute. Recognising that technical 
excellence is critical to the profession and to our members’ 
growth, we further expanded the Institute’s capabilities 
by establishing the Quality Assurance and Professional 
Development departments. 

In this report, you can read more about the programmes 
and activities that the Quality Assurance department, 
despite being newly set up, has in place to promote audit 
quality, with particular focus on the Small and Medium 
Practices (SMPs). These include practice guides on SSCQ 1 
implementation, a series of articles to clarify the key elements 
of SSQC 1 as well as technical clinics and an online technical 
forum to facilitate the discussion of issues. In 2012, the 
department also launched the Quality Assurance Review 
programme, a voluntary consultancy scheme targeted at 

SMPs. The Institute is also in the process of establishing 
a Professional Development framework, which provides 
a structure for addressing the professional development 
needs of members, as well as monitoring and evaluating 
existing professional development programmes. 

SMP DEVELOPMENT
We have refreshed our focus on the SMP segment 
and launched several initiatives targeted at raising the 
productivity and capabilities of SMPs. In March 2012, 
we organised the ICPAS SME-SMP Forum, a networking 
event for SMEs and SMPs that provided a platform for 
companies to discuss business issues related to them. 
under the Industry Development division, we secured 
funding from SPRING Singapore’s Local Enterprise and 
Association Development (LEAD) Outreach Programme 
to organise industry outreach seminars on government 
assistance schemes benefiting SMEs and SMPs. The grant 
was used to fund 10 outreach seminars in 2012, which were 
attended by more than 300 SMPs and SMEs. To raise the 
profile of public accounting firms, including SMPs, we 
produced the ICPAS’ directory, which features more than 
600 professional service firms in accountancy, finance 
and business. 

BuILDING TEChNICAL CAPABILITIES
Throughout the year, we continued to increase awareness, 
raise technical capability and educate our members on 
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“Creating Value for our members, is a key underpinning 
that ICPAS continually strives to deliver throughout the 

organisation”

accounting- and auditing-related matters through outreach 
seminars and workshops, including but not limited to the 
ICPAS New Charities Accounting Standards seminar. This 
educated the management and preparers of the financial 
statements in the charity sector on the Charities Accounting 
Standards. Another seminar, An Effective Audit: Know 
What It Takes, helped preparers of financial statements 
understand the audit process. There was also the FRS 11 
Construction Contracts technical workshop, which was 
targeted at preparers of financial statements to help them 
understand the challenges faced in the practical application 
of the standard. All these are in addition to our flagship 
seminar on Observations by the Financial Statements 
Review Committee, held annually to improve the quality 
of financial statements presentation and disclosure.

In consultation with government and industry stakeholders, 
and supported by the Auditing and Assurance Standards 
Committee, our Technical Standards Development & 
Advisory (TSDA) department issued practice guidance for 
members including the revised Audit Guidance Statement 
(AGS) 1 Sample Independent Auditor’s Reports, AGS 9 
Opinion on Receipts, Expenditure, Investment of Moneys 
and the Acquisition and Disposal of Assets by Statutory 
Boards and AGS 10 Joint Audits.  

The audit of construction companies, particularly with 
regard to the application of Financial Reporting Standards 
(FRS) 11 Construction Contracts, was identified as an area 
of deficiency in the practice reviews of accounting entities 
that audit non-public interest entities. To address this, the 
Practice Monitoring department issued the Practical Guidance 
No. 11 on Audit of Long-term Construction Contracts. 

Our TSDA team also published a number of commentaries 
on various technical issues as part of the Institute’s efforts 
to educate members as well as the public. Amongst others, 
the commentary FRS 24: Just Who are Considered Related 
Parties addressed issues relating to the identification and 

disclosure of related parties. There were also commentaries 
written in the area of insolvency, Members’ Voluntary 
Liquidation: Better Safe than Sorry, to encourage the 
implementation of best practices in the area of insolvency. 

OuR GLOBAL FOOTPRINT
Given the globalised nature of business today, it is important 
for ICPAS to be a globally recognised professional 
accountancy body, a vision that we continue to strive 
diligently towards. 

The Institute’s International Development and Relations 
department is dedicated to developing relationships with 
key organisations across the globe. In 2012, the Institute 
actively engaged international organisations, participating 
in global and regional events to enhance relations and 
forge partnerships with influential global bodies like the 
IFAC and the World Bank.  

In March 2012, we collaborated with IFAC to organise 
the IFAC SMP forum, which was attended by over 200 
delegates from 40 professional accountancy organisations 
in 36 countries. The international event helped raise our 
profile in the global arena. 

We also took part in the International Auditing and 
Assurance Standards Board (IAASB) roundtable on 
Improving the Auditor’s Report, which was held in October 
in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia, and submitted a comment 
letter to IAASB on the subject. With the significant impact 
this project is expected to have on the global accountancy 
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profession, as the national accountancy body, ICPAS 
was present at the roundtable to advocate the views of 
Singapore’s accountancy profession.

In addition, we collaborated with the World Bank on a 
proposal to narrow development gaps among professional 
bodies in the ASEAN region. This was showcased at an 
ASEAN Federation of Accountants (AFA) meeting.  

As a founding member of AFA, we continue to participate 
regularly at its Council meetings in the region. Over the 
course of the year, we participated in various regional 
and global events, such as the IFAC Council Meeting, 
and hosted visits by overseas counterparts.  

CELEBRATING 50 YEARS OF 
ACCOuNTABILITY, PROFESSIONALISM  
AND TRuST IN 2013 
In 2013, the Institute will celebrate its 50th anniversary. 
As the national accountancy body, ICPAS has been 
instrumental to the development of the accounting 
profession for the past five decades. What a journey it has 
been, filled with significant milestones and memorable 
moments. I invite you to join in the festivities we have 
planned for our golden jubilee as well as our capstone 
Singapore Accountancy Convention and Gala Dinner, 
which will be held in mid-2013.  

It is an achievement for a professional body to pass the 
50-year milestone, and this would not have been possible 
without the support of our members and stakeholders.  

I would like to thank ICPAS Advisor Mr Teo Ser Luck 
for his wise counsel, and I am grateful to the Executive 
Committee and fellow Council Members who have served 
selflessly in dedication to the Institute. I would also like to 
thank the staff at ICPAS, led by CEO Mr Lee Fook Chiew 
and the senior management team, for their commitment, 
dedication and good work. 

Most of all, I would like to thank you, our members. ICPAS’ 
story began with humble beginnings half a century ago. 
While we have made huge strides since then, only with 
your support will ICPAS continue to make history for the 
accountancy profession as we journey towards the next 
50 years and beyond.

ernest Kan
President
Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore
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Corporate Information
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ICPAS
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The Council has pleasure in presenting its 2012/2013 Annual Report and Accounts of the Institute for the year ended 
31 December 2012.

At the first Council meeting held in April 2012, the following Council members were elected as office bearers:

PRESIDENT - ERNEST KAN YAW KIONG
VICE PRESIDENT - R. DhINAKARAN
TREASuRER - hO TuCK ChuEN 

THE COUNCIL
The 2012/2013 Council held 7 ordinary meetings and 1 special meeting from April 2012 to March 2013.  Column A 
indicates the number of Council meetings the member attended; column B shows the number of committees he/she sits on.

A B A B

Peter Chay Fook Yuen 6 2 Max Loh Khum Whai 4 2

Frankie Chia Soo hien 8 2 Jeann Low Ngiap Jong 5 2

Michael Chin Sek Peng 6 1 Pang Yang hoong 7 1

Genevieve Chua Kwee huay 7 1 R. Dhinakaran 8 3

Don ho Mun-Tuke 7 1 Sitoh Yih Pin 5 2

ho Tuck Chuen 7 4 Tan Boen Eng 6 1

ho Yew Kee 6 4 Gillian Yeo hian heng 3 2

Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong 8 3 Yeoh Oon Jin 4 2

Vincent Lim Boon Seng 7 2 Danielle Yew Woon Theng 7 2

Lim Kexin 7 2 Yim Kam May 4 1

Council Report
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Building on Our  
Membership Base



At a Glance
JaNUary

LAuNCh OF ThE 
MEMBERShIP  
DEVELOPMENT FuND 
T h e  o n e - y e a r  M e m b e r s h i p 
Development Fund was launched 
in January 2012 to encourage and  
facilitate the efforts of members in 
developing new competencies to deepen 
their expertise. 

5 JAN  
SEMINAR OF PRODuCTIVITY
Tax professionals were briefed on the 
latest initiative by the Inland Revenue 
of Singapore (IRAS) at the Seminar 
of Productivity, which was jointly 
organised by the Singapore Institute of 
Accredited Tax Professionals (SIATP), 
IRAS and Tax Academy. Designed 
to reduce paperwork by over 50 per 
cent, the initiative enabled small 
corporations with an annual turnover 
of S$1 million and below to file their 
income tax return using a simplified 
tax form that comprises only three 
pages (down from the usual seven). 
Taxes can also be filed in hard copy 
or electronically. 

7 AND 14 JAN  
ChINESE NEW YEAR 
ShOPPING TRIPS
ICPAS members embarked on two 
shopping trips to usher in Chinese 
New Year. The first trip, 7 January, saw 
members visiting the factories of various 
local brands such as Kwong Cheong 
Thye, Bee Cheng hiang, Bengawan Solo 
and Camel Nuts. Then on 14 January, 
110 members went across the border 
to Johor Premium Outlets.

The panel comprised business leaders, CEOs, heads of business associations and accounting professionals; 
government agency representatives attended as observers.

31 JAN  
ICPAS PRE-BuDGET 2012 
ROuNDTABLE
T h e  I C PA S  P r e - B u d g e t  2 0 1 2 
Roundtable, themed Jobs, Productivity 
and Growth, was held at Mandarin 
Oriental Singapore and provided 
a  plat form where  the  bus iness 
community could provide feedback 
to the government on Budget 2011 
policies and focus areas for Budget 2012, 
before the Singapore Budget Debate.  
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17 FEB 
NETWORKING AT 
ThE LAuNCh OF ThE 
NEW AuDI A6 AVANT
ICPAS and Law Society members 
gathered at the Premium Motors 
showroom for the launch of the new 
Audi A6 Avant, which was made 
available at a special price to all 
members. 

21 FEB 
BuDGET 2012: 
ICPAS PANEL FOR 
ThE PROFESSIONS
ICPAS hosted a closed-door panel 
discussion for the professions on Budget 
2012 to gather opinions on the Budget. 
Representatives from the 15 bodies 
under the Professions Group, who had 
supported the nomination of ICPAS 
Vice President Mr Dhinakaran for 
appointment as a Nominated Member 
of Parliament, were invited to the event. 

The roundtable was co-chaired  
by ICPAS President Dr Ernest Kan 
and Ms Jessica Tan, Chairman of 
the Government Parl iamentar y 
Committee for Finance and Trade & 
Industry, for the third year running 
since 2010. The panel included 14 
prominent business leaders, CEOs, 
heads of business associations and top 
accounting professionals. As a relevant 
feedback channel on the Budget, 
representatives from the Ministry 
of Finance, Monetary Authority of 
Singapore, IRAS, SPRING Singapore, 
Workforce Development Agency, 
Economic Development Board and 
International Enterprise Singapore 
were also present as observers. 

FEbrUary 

CPA SINGAPORE JOuRNAL 
AVAILABLE ONLINE AS AN 
E-JOuRNAL
The CPA Singapore journal was made 
available online as an e-journal in 
February. To enhance members’ 
reading experience, the online 
pdf format was changed to an 
e-journal format. Although the 
content remains the same as the 
print version, additional e-functions 
have made the e-journal reading 
more pleasurable and interesting. 

MarCH

1 MAR 
ICPAS BuDGET 2012: 
uPDATE AND TAx 
IMPLICATIONS
The annual ICPAS budget seminar 
was attended by over 500 participants 
who gained valuable insights and 
views from the distinguished speaker 
and panel. The panel comprised 
representatives from DBS Group 
Research, Economic Development 
B oard,  Singapore  Management 
university,  Singapore Business 
Federation and KPMG Singapore. 

At a Glance

At the Budget updates: ICPAS Panel for the Professions (Standing from left) Mr Chiu Wu Hong, 
KPMG Singapore Partner (Tax); Mr Alan Ross, SIATP Board Member and PwC LLP Head of Tax; 
Mr Theodore Chan, Singapore Institute of Architects 2nd Vice President; Mr Keith Kee, Marketing 
Institute of Singapore 1st Vice President; Ajit Prabhu, Deloitte & Touche LLP Head of Tax; Mr Lau 
Shih Hor, Elixir Technology Pte Ltd CEO and Co-founder 

(Sitting from left) Mr Raymond Cheung, Singapore Actuarial Society Honorary Secretary;  
Dr Chong Yeh Woei, Singapore Medication Association President; Dr Ernest Kan, ICPAS President; 
Mr R. Dhinakaran, ICPAS Vice President and Nominated Member of Parliament; Ms Cheong 
Choy Wai, Ernst & Young Partner (Tax); Ms Pearlyn Koh, Insurance and Financial Practitioners 
Association of Singapore Vice President (Public Relations & Industry Representation)



At the IFAC SMP Forum 2012 (From left) ICPAS President Dr Ernest Kan; current IFAC President 
Mr Warren Allen; ACRA Assistant CE (Accountancy) Ms Julia Tay; IFAC SMP Committee 
Chairman Dr Giancarlo Attolini, and IFAC Quality and Member Relations Director Ms Sylvia Tsen

20 MAR 
DEVELOPING SMPS AND SMES
This forum was organised by ICPAS 
to help small business owners address 
the challenges in talent management, 
technology, productivity and sustained 
growth. Themed How to Grow Amidst 
Market Uncertainties, the event drew 
a capacity crowd of 300 Small and 
Medium Enterprises (SMEs) and SMPs.

31 MAR 
SAA-GE SuCCESSFuLLY 
RENEWS SQC 
CERTIFICATION 
SAA-GE successfully renewed its  
Singapore Quality Class (SQC)  
certification status. SAA-GE first 
adopted the SQC framework in 2005, 
and this successful renewal signifies 
SAA-GE’s long-term commitment to 
business excellence practices to deliver 
superior results for its stakeholders.

19 MAR 
ICPAS CO-hOSTS 
IFAC SMP FORuM 2012 
IN SINGAPORE
Over 200 delegates from 40 professional 
accountancy organisations in 36 
countries convened in Singapore 
for the sixth annual IFAC Small and 
Medium Practices (SMP) Forum at 
Grand hyatt Singapore. Co-hosted by 
ICPAS, the event featured a keynote 
address by Ms Jessica Tan, Chairman 
of the Government Parliamentary 
Committee for Finance and Trade & 
Industry in Singapore, and speakers from 
the Singapore Business Federation and 
Accounting and Corporate Regulatory 
Authority (ACRA). 

aprIL

28 APR 
ICPAS WELCOMES 
NEW COuNCIL MEMBERS
Seven distinguished members came on 
board the ICPAS Council in April. As 
Council Members, they will provide 
strategic direction and counsel for 
the Institute in its mission to develop 
the accountancy profession. With the 
injection of fresh leadership talent, 
one third of the ICPAS Council now 
comprises new members.

May

25 MAY 
ICPAS NEW ChARITIES 
ACCOuNTING STANDARDS 
SEMINAR 
The ICPAS New Charities Accounting 
Standards Seminar was held on 25 May 
2012 at Carlton hotel Singapore. It 
was a sell-out success attracting more 
than 200 participants. The Charities 
Accounting Standard was issued on 
24 June 2011 as an alternative financial 
reporting framework for charities. 

29 MAY 
CPA TOASTMASTERS’ CLuB 
CELEBRATES 25 YEARS
On 29 May 2012, more than 40 CPA 
Singapore members and guests attended 
the CPA Toastmasters’ Club’s 25th 
Anniversary Silver Jubilee Celebration 
at the new campus of SAA-GE. 

Moving with the Times
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At the seminar An Effective Audit: Know What It Takes: ICPAS Vice President Mr R Dhinakaran  
(2nd from left) with seminar presenters (from left) Ernst & Young Partner Mr Tham Chee Soon, 
KPMG Partner Mr Jeya Poh Wan Suppiah and Deloitte & Touche Partner Mr Patrick Tan

At a Glance

17 JuL 
ICPAS MEMBERS hONOuRED 
AT SINGAPORE CORPORATE 
AWARDS
The Singapore Corporate Awards  
(SCA) saw ICPAS members winning 
two out of three categories under the 
Best Chief Financial Officer Award. 
ICPAS, a founding member of SCA, 
has been a key partner of the annual 
awards ceremony since its inception 
in 2005.

JUNE

12 JuN 
ICPAS WINS COMMuNITY 
SPIRIT AWARD
ICPAS was conferred the People’s 
Association Community Spirit Award 
for its contributions to volunteerism. 

JULy

ICPAS TEAM VISITS hKICPA
Dr Ernest Kan, President of ICPAS, 
led a delegation to the hong Kong 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
(hKICPA). There was a good exchange 
of ideas between both Institutes, and the 
delegates gained a better understanding 
of the systems, structure and success 
ingredients hKICPA has put in place to 
gain global eminence. This study trip 
is part of ICPAS’ preparatory efforts 
to assume operational readiness for 
administering the Singapore Qualification 
Programme (Singapore QP). 
 

(From left) Immediate past ICPAS Head of Examinations and Qualification Ms Georgina Chan; 
ICPAS Executive Director, Mr Yee Cheok Hong; HKICPA Chief Executive Mr Raphael Ding; 
HKICPA President Mr Keith Pogson; ICPAS President Dr Ernest Kan; ICPAS COO Ms Goh Puay 
Cheh; HKICPA Executive Director Mr Chris Joy; ICPAS Executive Director, Ms Lim Ai Leen, and 
ICPAS Deputy Head of Examinations and Qualification, Ms Soh Suat Lay



Singapore  President Tony Tan Keng Yam (right) receiving ICPAS’ donation to the President’s 
Challenge from ICPAS President Dr Ernest Kan

25 JuL
ICPAS SEMINAR –  
AN  EFFECTIVE AuDIT: 
KNOW WhAT IT TAKES
ICPAS organised a seminar titled 
An Effective Audit: Know What It Takes 
to reach out to the preparers of 
financial statements. The event was 
supported by the Singapore Exchange 
(SGx) and initiated by the Institute’s 
Technical Standards Development & 
Advisory Department and Auditing 
and Assurance Standards Committee. 

aUgUsT

ICPAS APPOINTS  
MR LEE FOOK ChIEW  
AS CEO

ICPAS has appointed Mr Lee Fook 
Chiew as its Chief Executive Officer. Mr 
Lee joins ICPAS at a time of significant 
development, with Singapore poised to 
be a global accountancy hub by 2020 
and the Singapore QP targeted to be 
launched in June 2013. 

ICPAS hELPS  
ThE uNDERPRIVILEGED 
ThROuGh PRESIDENT’S 
ChALLENGE
Doing its part as a responsible corporate 
citizen, ICPAS donated S$10,000 towards 
the President’s Challenge. The donation 
supported the fundraising efforts of 
IRAS as part of its 20th anniversary 
celebrations as a statutory board. 

16 AuG
PuBLIC ACCOuNTANTS 
CONFERENCE 2012
ICPAS was the strategic partner for the 
Public Accountants Conference (PAC) 
2012. At the PAC, Mr Yee Cheok hong, 
Executive Director of ICPAS shared 
with the audience the initiatives that 

the Institute  has been introducing to 
gear the accounting profession up for 
higher productivity. ICPAS Practice 
Monitoring head Ms Monica Yong 
shared the key observations about non-
public interest entities firms. ICPAS 
Auditing and Assurance Standards 
Committee Chairman Mr Yeoh Oon 
Jin highlighted some of the challenges 
faced by the profession in implementing 
auditing standards. 

“Doing its part as a responsible corporate 
citizen, ICPAS donated S$10,000 towards the 
President’s Challenge.”

Moving with the Times
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27 AuG
WORLD BANK CFMO  
VISITS ICPAS
Mr Anthony M hegarty, Chief Financial 
Management Officer (CFMO) and 
head of the Financial Management 
Sector Board, World Bank, visited 
ICPAS. he shared more insights on 
the Memorandum of understanding 
(MOu) to Strengthen Accountancy and 
Improve Collaboration, signed between 
IFAC and the Donor Community 
comprising more than 10 donors 
including the World Bank. he was 
received by Mr Lee Fook Chiew, CEO 
of ICPAS, together with a number of 
ICPAS officers.

SAA-GE MOVES TO NEW 
PREMISES AT TRIPLEONE 
SOMERSET
SAA-GE has moved its city campus to 
new premises at TripleOne Somerset. 
TripleOne Somerset is located in the 
prime Orchard Road area, and is a short 
walk from Somerset MRT station and 
next to the National Youth Council’s 
*Scape Youth Centre. The new city 
campus has a bigger floor area and 
brand new facilities to enhance the 
overall experience for students.

At a Glance

ICPAS CEO Mr Lee Fook Chiew (2nd from left) welcomed World Bank Chief Financial Management Officer 
and Head of the Financial Management Sector Board Mr Anthony M Hegarty (3rd from left) to ICPAS. With 
them were ICPAS officers (from left) Executive Director Mr Yee Cheok Hong, COO Ms Goh Puay Cheh and 
Manager of International Development and Relations Ms Evelyn Tan.

SAA-GE moves to new premises at TripleOne Somerset



sEpTEMbEr

14 SEP  
SINGAPORE, JAPAN SMPS 
ExPLORE OPPORTuNITIES 
FOR COLLABORATION
Some 30 SMPs from Singapore and 
Japan gathered at a networking event 
jointly organised by ICPAS and Nanyang 
Technological university. The aim of 
the event was to facilitate networking 
between Singapore SMPs and their 
counterparts in Japan, and explore 
opportunities for collaboration.

17 SEP
ICPAS-IMCS  
PRODuCTIVITY 
CONFERENCE  
ATTRACTS BIG  
TuRNOuT
IC PAS  and  t he  Ins t i tute  of  
Management Consultants Singapore  
(IMCS) jointly organised a productivity 
conference on Capitalising Productivity 
Improvement for Growth. This was 
ICPAS’ second productivity seminar 
to highlight the importance of 
productivity tools in raising 
productivity for SMPs and professional 
accountants in business. 

20 SEP
SIGNING OF MOu  
WITh ACRA, SID  
AND SAICSA 
On 20 September, ICPAS signed a  
MOu with the ACRA, Singapore 
Institute of Directors (SID) and 
Singapore Association of the Institute of  
Chartered Secretaries & Administrators 
(SAICSA) to jointly conduct the 
Directors’ Proficiency Programme. 

OCTObEr

NEW ICPAS BREAKFAST 
TALK SERIES FOR MEMBERS
Taking place every second Wednesday 
of the month at ICPAS’ City Campus 
at TripleOne Somerset, the ICPAS 
Breakfast Talk Series is a new initiative 
by ICPAS to bring greater value to 
members and catalyse their career 
success. Each month, business 
professionals from diverse fields 
will provide insight on their areas 
of expertise. ICPAS has specially 
invited experienced practitioners 
to share practical knowledge drawn 
from real-life examples and their 
experiences. Members attending the 
talks will be able to learn about the 
practical issues that they are likely 
to face in their course of work.

4 OCT
MASSIVE TuRNOuT FOR 
FIRST ICPAS SME-SMP FMCP 
SEMINAR
Some 120 participants attended 
the first-ever SME-SMP Financial 
Management Capability Programme 
(FMCP) Seminar titled Leveraging 
Financial Management in Driving 

Sustainable Growth for SMEs. The 
seminar provided a useful platform 
for SMEs to find out how they can 
benefit from various schemes under 
FMCP, which allows companies to tap 
on financial management advisory 
services to grow their businesses. 

8 OCT 
IAASB ROuNDTABLE: 
IMPROVING ThE  
AuDITOR’S REPORT
The International Auditing and 
Assurance Standards Board (IAASB) 
Roundtable, Improving the Auditor’s 
Report, was held in Kuala Lumpur, 
Malaysia, with the aim to gather 
feedback on the significant proposed 
improvements to the Auditor’s Report 
by IAASB.

19 OCT
SEMINAR ON 
OBSERVATIONS BY FSRC
Over 420 participants from accounting 
firms, commercial entities and statutory 
boards attended a seminar to find out 
more about areas where the presentation 
or content of financial statements fall 
short of compliance with the Singapore 
Financial Reporting Standards and 
Singapore Standards on Auditing. 
Presented by the Financial Statements 
Review Committee (FSRC) of ICPAS, 
this annual seminar took place at the 
Carlton hotel Singapore.
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23Annual Report 2012/2013



21 NOV
ICPAS CFO ROuNTABLE  
AND FORuM:
TuRNING RISK GOVERNANCE 
INTO AN ADVANTAGE
More than 14 experienced CFOs and 
senior management were engaged in 
a closed-door discussion, facilitated 
by Deloitte, on risk governance. The 
roundtable was pitched at a strategic 
level to discuss on the implications of 
SGX Listing Rule 1207. This roundtable 
was followed by an ICPAS CFO 
Forum, with supporting organisations 
Deloitte, hitachi Asia and SAP. This 
risk management forum had an 
overwhelming response of more than 
60 CFOs and finance professionals.

26 NOV
GREAT INTEREST IN 
FIRST AAPNT PROGRAMME 
JOB FAIR
Jointly organised by the ICPAS and 
Employment and Employability Institute, 
and supported by the Workforce 
Development Agency, the event attracted 
80 job-seekers and seven participating 
companies.

At a Glance

29 OCT 
ICPAS CFO SEMINAR: 
uNLOCKING TRAPPED 
LIQuIDITY IN uNCERTAIN 
TIMES
More than 60 CFOs and finance 
professionals packed the well-received 
ICPAS CFO Seminar, Unlocking 
Trapped Liquidity in Uncertain Times.  
The seminar, jointly organised by 
ICPAS and OCBC Bank, was held at 
OCBC Centre. 

NOvEMbEr

9 NOV
JOuRNEY WITh ICPAS – 
ICPAS DINNER AND DANCE 
2012
Representatives from government 
agencies, Big Four, mid-tier and SMP 
firms, and ICPAS Council and Committee 
Members, were treated to a special 
event that brought them on a nostalgic 
tour of ICPAS’ past. Videos featuring 
interviews with two of the Institute’s 
founding members, Mr Francis Kwan 
and Mr Michael Wong Pakshong, as 
well as ICPAS’ historic milestones, 
were screened, evoking memories of 
ICPAS over the years.

11 NOV
SAA-GE RAISES FuNDS 
FOR ST SChOOL POCKET 
MONEY FuND
SAA-GE has raised more than 
S$7,000 for its adopted charity for 
2012, The Straits Times School Pocket 
Money Fund (SPMF). The school held 
a fundraising drive from 8 October 
to 2 November, selling raffle tickets 
and SPMF teddy bears, and holding 
a flea market. 

26 NOV
ICAEW PRESIDENT  
VISITS ICPAS
Mr Mark Spofforth, President, Institute 
of Chartered Accountants in England 
and Wales (ICAEW), and Mr Mark 
Billington, Regional Director, South East 
Asia, ICAEW, visited ICPAS. They were 
warmly welcomed by Dr Ernest Kan, 
President of ICPAS, and Mr Lee Fook 
Chiew, CEO of ICPAS. Both ICPAS and 
ICAEW engaged in a broad-ranging 
and insightful discussion including the 
Singapore QP.

DECEMbEr

9 DEC 
ICPAS SuPPORTS 
INTERNATIONAL  
ANTI-CORRuPTION DAY
IC PAS  p ar t ne re d  t he  C or r upt  
Practices Investigation Bureau (CPIB) 
in encouraging accounting and 
business professionals to reaffirm their 
commitment to the highest ethical 
standards by pledging their support 
for International Anti-Corruption Day. 

At the ICPAS CFO Roundtable: (From left) Mr Yee Cheok Hong, Executive Director, ICPAS, Mr Chow 
Kam Wing, Chief Financial Officer, Micro-Mechanics, Mr David Chew, Executive Director, Deloitte  
& Touche Risk Consulting and Mr Ho Tuck Chuen, ICPAS Treasurer, and Group Chief Financial 
Officer, JTC Corporation



ICPAS CEO Mr Lee Fook Chiew (left)  
shaking hands with CPIB Director Mr Eric Tan 
after presenting him with the names of almost 
800 accounting and business professionals who 
have pledged their support for International 
Anti-Corruption Day

Mr Mark Spofforth, President, ICAEW 
(3rd from left), and Mr Mark Billington, 

Regional Director, South East Asia, 
ICAEW (5th from left), met with the 

ICPAS team (from left) Mr Yee Cheok 
Hong, Executive Director, Mr Lee 

Fook Chiew, CEO; Dr Ernest Kan, 
President, and Ms Evelyn Tan, Manager, 

International Development and Relations 

(From left) ICPAS 
Awards 2012 recipient 
Mr Khoo Ho Tong; 
Minister of State for 
Trade and Industry, and 
ICPAS Advisor  
Mr Teo Ser Luck; ICPAS 
Council Member and 
Ernst & Young Country 
Managing Partner  
Mr Max Loh; ICPAS 
Awards 2012 recipient 
and Ernst & Young Asia-
Pacific COO Mr Steven 
Phan, and Deloitte 
Singapore CEO  
Mr Philip Yuen
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Broadening Our  
Scope of Services



Year in Review  – 
Gearing up for a Better Tomorrow
As the national accountancy body, ICPAS has a pivotal 
role to play in support of the Singapore government’s 
Committee to Develop the Accountancy Sector (CDAS)’s 
vision to transform the Singapore accountancy sector into 
a leading global accountancy hub for the Asia-Pacific 
region by 2020. 

Laying the foundation for our expansion, the Institute 
streamlined our organisational structure and established 
two new divisions – (1) Policy & Strategic Planning and 

(2) Industry Development – in anticipation of the changing 
demands of the market. We also strengthened and reinforced 
our capabilities in two other divisions – Examinations and 
Qualification, and Technical Knowledge Centre & Quality 
Assurance – in a bid to develop ICPAS as the institute of 
excellence. 

In setting out the growth strategy for ICPAS, the Institute 
takes a long-term perspective. By the third quarter of 2012, 
we had kick-started the process of defining our strategic 
direction for 2013 to 2015, which marks Phase 2 of our 
transformation. In the subsequent years leading up to 2020, 
ICPAS will implement Phase 3 of our transformation, the 
final phase of our development for a better tomorrow as we 
take our place as a fully fledged global accountancy body. 

ICpas sTraTEgIC pLaN 2012
In 2012, the Institute’s Policy & Strategic Planning division, 
with the support of the other divisions, rolled out a revitalised 
Vision and Strategic Plan. This new plan was built upon 
our AIM (Accountancy excellence, Industry growth and 
Member & human capital development) strategic objectives 
that were first unveiled in 2009.

“In the subsequent years leading up to 
2020, ICPAS will implement Phase 3 of 
our transformation, the final phase of 
our development for a better tomorrow 
as we take our place as a fully fledged 
global accountancy body.”
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Year in Review -
Gearing up for a Better Tomorrow

ICpas COrpOraTE sTraTEgIC pLaN 2012

Vision: To be a globally recognised professional accountancy body, bringing value to the members, the 
profession and the wider community 

Mission: To create a Dynamic Institute | To develop a Vibrant Profession | To build a Bold ICPAS 

Core Values: Teamwork, Integrity, Progressive, Excellence , Empathy

DESIRED OuTCOMES

Technical 
excellence

Strong support of 
key stakeholders

Empowered 
membership

Influential voice 
in global alliance 

network

Strong brand 
equity

CRITICAL SuCCESS FACTORS

Excellent 
leadership talent

Cutting-edge 
ideas

World-class 
infrastructure

Robust 
engagement and 

support of key 
stakeholders 

Strong brand 
equity

LEARNING & GROWTh RESOuRCE MANAGEMENT

Attract, develop and 
retain quality people

Internal engagement

Develop leadership

Nurture a culture that 
supports ICPAS core values

Align resources to 
organisational objectives

Develop additional 
funding capabilities

MEMBERShIP VALuE OPERATIONAL ExCELLENCE/INDuSTRY DEVELOPMENT

ST
RA

TE
G

IC
 O

BJ
EC

TI
V

ES

Professional 
development

Create greater 
value for members

Internationally recognised  
ICPAS qualifications

Enhance capacity 
and capabilities

Build and 
enhance ICPAS 
brand identity

Increase industry 
engagement and 

development

Expand 
global alliance 

network

Enhance 
government 

collaboration

Proactive 
outreach  and 

service excellence 
for  members

Enhance 
administrative and 

service support

Technical excellence  
and thought leadership

Enhance programmes 
and infrastructure



Year in Review

As the national accountancy body, it is imperative that we lay the groundwork for supporting the profession 
and empower our members with sound technical knowledge. Recognising the need to raise the standards 
of technical capabilities for our members in a changing global business landscape, ICPAS has strengthened 
its technical knowledge centre and realigned its technical standards development and advisory functions 
with the introduction of two new departments so as to drive the changes that will position Singapore as the 
Accountancy hub for the region. 

Building Technical 
Capabilities

aN ENHaNCED OrgaNIsaTIONaL 
INFrasTrUCTUrE

In 2012, the Institute rolled out the Quality Assurance 
Framework for SMPs and formed two new departments, 
Quality Assurance and Professional Development. The Quality 
Assurance Framework aims to enhance the efficiency and 
raise the quality of audit work by SMPs. It is a holistic and 
structured approach of providing support to our SMPs in 
terms of technical advice, training and counselling, as well as 
sharing of best practices. Raising the quality of SMPs’ audit 
work and its beneficial impact on the financial reporting of 
companies will reinforce Singapore’s position as a reputable 
and trusted business and financial centre. 

sTrEaMLINED OrgaNIsaTIONaL 
INFrasTrUCTUrE

Professional
Development

Technical 
Knowledge  

Centre &  
Quality  

Assurance  
division

Practice
Monitoring

Quality
Assurance

Technical
Standards

Development
& Advisory

29Annual Report 2012/2013



TECHNICaL sTaNDarDs 
DEvELOpMENT & aDvIsOry 
DEparTMENT

RAISING AWARENESS 
To raise awareness on financial and 
ethical issues, the Technical Standards 
Development & Advisory department 
(TSDA) conducted several workshops 
in collaboration with experts from 
the ICAEW. The workshop Building 
an Effective Finance Department: 
How Everyone Can Contribute helped 
public accountants and professional 
accountants in business consider how 
the finance function can contribute 
to an organisation in meeting its 
objectives. 

The workshop Market Foundations: 
Workshop on Integrity, Ethics and 
Public Interest – What Do They All 
Mean also drew valuable insights 
from the experiences of the speakers 
on ethical issues. 

TSDA also published a number of 
commentaries on technical issues in the 
year. Amongst others, the commentary 
FRS 24: Just Who Are Considered Related 
Parties, published in both ICAEW’s 
Financial Reporting Faculty journal 
By All Accounts and the Institute’s 
CPA Singapore journal, addressed 
issues relating to the identification 
and disclosure for related parties. 
One other commentary Meeting the 
Grade – Why Audit Opinions Matter to 
Construction Companies was written 
to tackle some of the auditing issues 
faced in the construction industry. 

There were also commentaries written 
in the area of insolvency, Members’ 
Voluntary Liquidation: Better Safe 
than Sorry; on the impending changes 
to the Companies Act, Looking under 
the Hood: Tweaking the Companies 
Act (The Business Times, 8 Nov 2012); 
and the role of preparers in financial 
reporting, Financial Reporting Not 
Just Auditor’s Job (The Business Times, 
11 Dec 2012).  

TSDA’s various outreach seminars helped 
to raise awareness on accounting- and 
auditing-related matters. These included 
the ICPAS New Charities Accounting 
Standards Seminar and the auditing 
seminar An Effective Audit: Know What 
It Takes. TSDA also organised an FRS 
11 Construction Contracts technical 
workshop targeted at preparers of 
financial statements to help them 
understand the challenges faced in the 
practical application of FRS 11 from 
the perspective of both a practitioner 
as well as a chief financial officer of 
a listed company in the construction 
industry.

ENhANCING TEChNICAL 
RESOuRCES AND 
GuIDANCE
To equip our members with relevant 
resources, TSDA has and will continue 
to update the technical microsites 
with publications, frequently asked 
questions (FAQs), guidance and other 
useful resources and reference materials 
that members can utilise during the 
course of their work. As part of TSDA’s 
efforts to raise the quality of financial 
reporting of the accountancy profession, 
the department also organised the 
Seminar on Observations by the Financial 
Statements Review Committee (FSRC). 
The aim was to share the common 
findings of the reviews performed 
by FSRC with participants for their 
future improvement. Furthermore, 
TSDA has compiled a set of FAQs 
relating to the seminar and uploaded 
it to the Institute’s Centre for Financial 
Reporting microsite to increase the 
accessibility of the findings. 

Some 70 public accountants and professional accountants in business heard about the different 
perspectives governing integrity, ethics and the public interest at the ICPAS-ICAEW workshop.

Year in Review -
Building Technical Capabilities



ICPAS also provided inputs on the 
same topic to IAASB during a related 
roundtable discussion held in Kuala 
Lumpur in October 2012. In the area of 
accounting, the Institute furnished its 
views on the International Accounting 
Standards Board exposure draft, Revenue 
from Contracts with Customers, which 
is expected to affect companies with 
long-term contracts and bundled 
transactions the most.  

The Research department was involved 
in a variety of invigorating research and 
thought leadership activities, which 
supported the Institute’s strategic plan 
initiatives. ICPAS was at the forefront 
on various thought opinions. These 
ranged from corporate governance, 
CFO, Singapore Budget, legislature, 
accountancy sector and business matters. 

The opinions were often published 
or covered in good-standing media, 
e.g. The Business Times. A recent 
prominent article was Tweaking the 
Companies Act (The Business Times,  
8 Nov 2012), jointly authored with TSDA. 
The Institute was also requested by 

media to contribute insights or articles 
pertinent to finance, accountancy 
or governance matters (e.g Boosting 
standards of board competencies, The 
Business Times, 21 Mar 2012). 
 
Research projects were executed 
to gather relevant information and 
data for various segments relevant to 
serving our members, such as CFOs, 
professional accountants in business 
and accounting firms. A variety of 
useful research reports were produced, 
such as the CFO Survey report in 2012 
and Pre-Budget Roundtable 2012. The 
unit was also prolific in contributing 
articles and bulletins throughout 
the year, via CPA Singapore journal 
or CPA Wire, meant to update and 
share best insights with our members.

We are also in collaboration with,  
or in the process of collaborating 
with, various established industry or 
accounting body partners (e.g. Big 
Four firms) in ongoing and future 
research projects. The Institute also 
provides our research findings to 
relevant authorities and stakeholders.  

QUaLITy assUraNCE 
DEparTMENT

The Quality Assurance department 
(QA) was set up in May 2012 to provide 
SMPs with the resources and assistance 
to deliver relevant and high-quality 
professional service in support of  
CDAS’ 2020 vision. A string of 
initiatives were launched within the 
year to provide support to the SMPs.

In our endeavour to provide practice 
guidance to members, TSDA revised 
the audit guidance statement (AGS) 
with the support of the Auditing and 
Assurance Standards Committee. For 
more details on AGS, please refer to the 
report by the Auditing and Assurance 
Standards Committee on page 46.

VOICE FOR ThE PROFESSION 
TSDA advocates the views of the 
profession through participation at 
international events and through 
submission of comment letters to 
international standard-setting bodies. 
One example of the latter is the IAASB 
paper, Improving the Auditor’s Report, 
which is expected to have a significant 
impact on the global accountancy 
profession. 

Rekindling relations with industry contacts were (from left) Malaysian Institute of Accountants 
President Datuk Mohd Nasir Ahmad; IAASB Deputy Chairman Mr Daniel Montgomery; Auditing 
and Assurance Standards Board (Australian Government) Chair Ms Merran Kelsall; ICPAS Executive 
Director (Technical Knowledge Centre and Quality Assurance) Ms Lim Ai Leen; IAASB Chairman 
Prof Arnold Schilder, and The Malaysian Institute of CPAs President Mr Ken Pushpanathan.

Moving with the Times
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CPA Singapore journal from November 
2012 onwards helped to increase 
public accountants’ understanding 
and appreciation of SSQC 1. 

FACILITATING ShARING 
AND ExChANGE AMONG 
PuBLIC ACCOuNTANTS
Following a survey of interest conducted 
with public accountants, we ran a series 
of technical clinics in the second half 
of the year, achieving 100 per cent 
attendance in all. held at ICPAS’ City 
Campus at TripleOne Somerset, the 
technical clinic is a monthly group 
discussion for public accountants 
from SMPs to discuss issues and 
share practical solutions on specific 
accounting or auditing related topics. 

For the benefit of a larger pool of 
public accountants who did not join 
the technical clinics, a series of articles 

relating to highlights of each technical 
clinic were published in the monthly 
CPA Singapore journal in order to 
update them on the pertinent issues 
and practical solutions. 

An online technical forum established 
in October 2012 provides another 
avenue for members to share their 
views on a range of financial reporting, 
auditing and accounting related topics. 
Members can access information and 
share their insights via their computer 
or mobile phone. As at the end of 2012, 
we have 140 registered members, with 
typical use ranging from 134 to 981 
views per thread. 

RAISING AuDIT QuALITY
The Quality  Assurance Review 
Programme (QARP) was launched in 
October 2012. QARP is a voluntary 
programme that aims to help participating 
public accountants improve their audit 
practices by identifying opportunities 
for improvement in audit procedures 
and documentation, through review 
of the signed-off engagement files. It 
also provides learning opportunities 
for the firm’s staff through the sharing 

SuPPORTING 
IMPLEMENTATION  
OF SSQC 1
To encourage and support SMPs in 
their implementation of the Singapore 
Standard on Quality Control 1 (SSQC 1),  
QA has rolled out several initiatives 
since September 2012 including the 
issuance of the first edition of SSQC 1  
Practice Guides, publication of a series 
of articles, and organising a series of 
courses, technical clinics and workshops. 
At the end of 2012, there were close 
to 150 SMPs who had placed orders 
for the Guides. 

The Technical Clinic and Continuing 
Professional Education (CPE) course on 
SSQC 1, both held in September 2012, 
were over-subscribed. The publication 
of a series of articles on SSQC 1 in the 

The first edition of SSQC 1 Practice Guides 
has a total of six guides. Each guide focusses 

on the major components of each element and 
contains numerous practice aid templates.

Year in Review -
Building Technical Capabilities



Moving forward, PD aims to identify 
the development needs of members 
directly by seeking feedback through 
various channels. The feedback will 
be used by the relevant departments 
as input to conceive, develop, and 
implement initiatives targeted at raising 
the professional competence and skills 
of our members. PD will evaluate 
selected initiatives on a regular basis 
(based on quantitative or qualitative 
measures) to ensure they continue to 
meet our members’ needs. With the 
set-up of the new department, we can 
now look forward to more targeted 
efforts to bring value to our members 
more effectively. 

praCTICE MONITOrINg 
DEparTMENT 

STRENGThENING AuDIT 
PRACTICES
The audits of construction companies, 
particularly with regard to the application 
of FRS 11 Construction Contracts, was 
highlighted as an increasingly common 
area of deficiency identified in the 
practice reviews of accounting entities 

that audit non-public interest entities. 
As a result, the Practice Monitoring 
department issued the Practice Guidance 
on Audit of Long-term Construction 
Contracts in the year under review. 
This aims to provide our members with 
guidance and practical consideration 
when performing audits of companies 
that engage in construction contracts. 

The department carried out practice  
reviews on 139 public accountants  
in 2012, overseen by ACRA.

of findings and proposed action plans, 
thus uplifting the skills and capability 
of the firm. Since the soft launch of 
QARP in October 2012, more than 
30 accounting firms have expressed 
interest in participation.  

prOFEssIONaL 
DEvELOpMENT DEparTMENT

The second new department set up in 
2012 was the Professional Development 
department (PD). Established in 
October, PD’s role is to help identify 
the professional development needs 
of members as well as to ensure that 
the Institute’s key initiatives meet the 
required standards and objectives.
 
Armed with an auditing background, 
PD works closely with the Institute’s 
CPE department to provide an objective 
evaluation on the quality of the CPE 
courses. PD is also engaged to provide 
inputs on CPE new projects periodically.
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As a member-centric institution, ICPAS dedicates itself to continuously providing our members with greater 
value that will empower them. In time, we envision a base of engaging and confident individuals who are 
ready to take on leadership roles in their respective domains as well as the wider community. 

Enhancing Membership

EMpOwErINg MEMbErs

As the Institute steps up its focus on playing its role as 
the national accountancy body, it is crucial to also retain 
its focus and relevancy as a society for our members. 
ICPAS membership has increased by 3.8 per cent since 
the previous year, and our members continue to be at the 
core of the Institute. Addressing our members’ needs to 
create greater value remains one of our key roles. 

MEMBERShIP PROFILE
1 TOTaL NUMber OF MeMbers  

as OF 31 DeC 2012 25,435

2 MeMbersHIP CLass  
as OF 31 DeC 2012:

-  Members in Practice 4%

-  Members in Retirement 2%

-  Professional Accountants in Business 68%

-  Associate Member 26%

3 PrOFessION
-  Accountants / Auditors 22.1%

-  Business Owners 3.5%

-  C-Suite / Executives 8.1%

-  Lecturers / Professors 2.4%

-  Managers 35.8%

-  Senior Management 19.1%

-   Others 9.0%

4 aGe (IN years)

-  ≤ 30 16%

-  31 – 40 37%

-  41 – 50 29%

-  51 – 60 12%

-  > 60 6%

5 GeNDer
-  Male 36%

-  Female 64%



Driving the Institute’s many initiatives 
and member offerings is the desire 
to  bui ld  an empowered ICPAS  
membership,  supported by key 
attributes: (1) This is one where our 
members are equipped with the right 
skills and knowledge to meet the 
changing demands of the marketplace, 
and are imbued with confidence 
in their abilities to carry out their 
responsibilities under the prestigious 
designation of CPA Singapore; and (2) 
We want our members to realise that 
they belong to a larger community so 
that they are not only keenly aware of 
societal developments, but also possess 
a sense of responsibility to serve the 
community.

DELIvErINg QUaLITy 
aCCOUNTaNCy EDUCaTION

In response to the CDAS’ recommendation 
to develop a globally recognised, 
Singapore-branded, post-university, 
professional accountancy qualification 
programme the Singapore Qualification 

Programme  (Singapore QP), the 
Institute established the Examinations 
and Qualification Division (EQD) in 
May 2010. 

The Singapore QP would be administered 
by ICPAS, under the independent 
oversight of the Singapore Accountancy 
Commission (SAC). The design 
of  Singapore  QP provides  new 
pathways  for  non-accountanc y  
graduates to become professional 
accountants. Singapore QP is pivotal 
in catalysing the expansion and 
diversification of the accountancy 
sector talent pool in Singapore.  

The EQD has been active in formulating 
operational plans and infrastructure 
necessary to administer the Singapore 
QP. The Institute has made significant 
investment in manpower and Singapore 
QP operational costs. The Institute will 
continue to invest our resources and gear 
up our capabilities to meet the ever-
changing demands of the accounting 
industry so as to contribute positively 
to the vision of Singapore as a global 
accountancy hub for the region.

IMPROVING PROFESSIONAL 
ExAMINATION PROGRAMME
In a bid to raise the standards of local 
accountants, the Institute launched 
an improved version of the ICPAS 
Professional Examination programme 
(ICPAS PE) in July 2012 as part of the 
Institute’s continuous efforts to enhance 
programme delivery. For more details 
on the ICPAS PE, please refer to the 
report by the Board of Education and 
Examiners committee on page 47. 

PROMOTING CONTINuING 
PROFESSIONAL EDuCATION
The CPE department launched about 
500 CPE courses, with a total of 11,000 
CPE participants, during the year for 
the purpose of equipping our members 
with skills across a wide range of 
competencies. 

STATISTICAL hIGhLIGhTS
aCTIVITIes 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
No. of Committees 33 30 24 21 21

No. of Meetings 57 68 59 56 49

Publications of the Institute 27 23 27 22 13

Courses and Talks 335 250 369 489 532

Conference 1 – 1 1 -
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In addressing the anticipated impending 
economic slowdown in 2012, the Institute 
launched the one-year Members’ 
Development Fund (MDF) in January 
2012 to assist our members to defray 
part of their overall training expenses. 
The MDF provided up to S$500 of 
funding support to each member for 
participation in CPE programmes 
conducted by the Institute. This was to 
encourage and support our members 
in their professional development. 
When the one-year MDF expired on 
31 December 2012, a total of 3,760 
members had tapped on this benefit, 
which amounted to S$150,950.

RAISING AuDITING 
COMPETENCE
To enhance the auditing skills of 
our members, the Institute launched 
the Professional Certificate in Audit 
Skills programme. This move comes 

on the back of an effort to put greater 
emphasis on improving the quality 
of audit practices and is in line with 
the vision of developing Singapore 
into a global accountancy hub. The 
Employment and Employability 
Institute (e2i) offered subsidies of 
up to 50 per cent of the course fee 
for trainees of the programme on a 
limited basis. 

NUrTUrINg MEMbErs

PROVIDING INSIGhTS AND 
ThOuGhT LEADERShIP
Among the membership database, the 
Institute has more than 6,200 senior 
finance professionals comprising Chief 
Financial Officers (CFOs), Financial 
Controllers and their equivalents. 

As Singapore powers towards CDAS’ 
vision to transform Singapore into a 

global accountancy hub, the Research 
department plays a crucial role as 
the voice of the local accounting 
industry through its research, thought-
leadership commentaries and applied 
capacity-building events. Amongst the 
numerous initiatives, some of the key 
highlights follow.

In September 2012, we conducted 
an ICPAS CFO Survey to better 
understand the needs of CFOs and 
senior professionals. Over 300 financial 
leaders took part in the survey, with 
144 of them holding the position of 
CFO or its equivalent and 171 being 
CFO aspirants. 

In particular, 39 respondents were 
from organisations with an annual 
turnover of over S$1 billion. The survey 
re-affirmed the increasing perception 
that the CFO’s portfolio has expanded 
in breadth and depth, often stretching 
beyond their roles as financial stewards 
to that of being a strategic business 
partner to their CEOs and requiring 
an increased focus in the areas of risk 
management. 

ICPAS held a closed-door ICPAS 
CFO round-table discussion Turning 
Risk Governance into an Advantage 
on 21 November 2012 that saw 
more than 14 experienced CFOs and 
senior management in attendance. 
Participants engaged in stimulating 
and thought-invoking dialogue on 
topics relevant to the profession such 
as the implications of the SGX listing 
rule 1207 (10) and risk governance. 
Several key questions were brought up 
for discussion, including the practical 
implications of the SGX listing rule 1207 

Year in Review -
Enhancing Membership

•  Overall, large number of 
CFOs, CFO aspirants and 
CFO potential amongst 
ICPAS’ membership:  
approximately  50% or 
12,000 members

• Widely held expectation    
-  significant proportion 
of Other PAIBs have apex 
aspiration of becoming 
CFO, if not CEO

CFO equivalent  = CFO, Finance Director, Finance VP, Head of Finance 
CFO aspirant  =  Financial Controller, Accounting/Finance Manager 
PAIBs = Professional Accountants in Business

 CFOs and equivalent
 FCs and equivalent
 Others PAIBs
 Accountants / Auditors
 Others

ICpas MEMbErs

29%
7,235

22%
5,463

24%
6,026

17%
4,349

8%
1,872

6,221



and compliance to these regulations. The 
outcome of the discussion, particularly 
in forming the basis of an opinion, 
weighed heavily on both the Boards 
and their management. This round 
table was followed by an ICPAS CFO 
Forum, which had an overwhelming 
response of more than 60 CFOs and 
finance professionals who were keen 
to share their ideas and best practices 
on risk management. 

ICPAS also hosted the ICPAS CFO 
seminar Unlocking Trapped Liquidity 
in Uncertain Times with OCBC Bank 
on 29 October 2012. Pertinent issues 
such as the macro-economic outlook, 
bright spots in the economy and 
impact on businesses, as well as cash 
flow management best practices were 
some of the topics discussed during 
the seminar. 

ExTENDINg OUr 
MEMbErsHIp rEaCH

LEADERShIP RENEWAL  
AND REAChING OuT TO 
YOuNG MEMBERS
To provide strategic direction and 
counsel in the fulfilment of our vision, 
ICPAS welcomed seven new council 
members to the ICPAS Council at the 
last AGM. The new Council Members 
are leaders in their respective fields 
and have extensive experience in the 
accounting sector. The newly elected 
Council range in age from late 20s to 
late 50s, which is representative of the 
current age demographic of ICPAS 
members, where one in three members 
is aged 35 and below. 

The Young Professionals Advisory 
Committee (YPAC) was established in 
June 2012 with a view to contributing to 
the strategy, operations and initiatives 
of ICPAS from the perspectives of our 
young members who are 35 years and 
below. Drawing from a dynamic team 

of nine members from a cross-section 
of industries, educational backgrounds 
and roles, and led by our youngest 
Council member, Miss Lim Kexin, 
who is in her late 20s, the committee 
reflects the diversity and aspirations 
of our next generation of accounting 
professionals. YPAC has provided 
valuable input to ICPAS’ roadmap and 
given insight on how ICPAS’ operations 
can increase the Institute’s relevance 
to younger members. 

ICPAS ANNuAL CPA GAMES
Since the 1980s, the Institute has been 
organising the annual CPA Games, the 
“Olympics” equivalent for the local 
accountancy profession. Now, more 
than 20 years on, the Games continues 
to garner high participation rates, 
not just from individuals and ICPAS 
members, but also from participating 
firms. 

In 2012, over 150 competitors and 
supporters participated in the CPA 
games with a record number of 23 
sporting events, as compared to 20 in the 
previous year. The CPA Games closing 
ceremony also saw a huge turnout of 
180 participants coming together to 
celebrate the spirit of sportsmanship 
and promote the sporting values of 
excellence, friendship and respect. The 
CPA Games is a popular networking 
platform for members of the profession. 
The Institute welcomes members of 
the profession to participate in next 
year’s CPA Games.   

Team Commerce, comprising members from non-accounting and auditing firms, participated in the 
CPA Games 2012.
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SOCIAL ACTIVITIES AND 
NETWORKING EVENTS
Besides fulfilling the professional 
needs of members, the Institute also 
creates avenues for our members to 
network with one another at least 
once a month. As of the end of 2012, 
the Institute had organised more than 
ten activities with 1,361 members 
participating.  

The activities are designed with the 
following objectives in mind:

•	 To	 foster	our	members’	well-
being through involvement with 
the community via social and 
sports activities;

•	 To	 recommend	 and	organise	
community, social and sports 
events that benefit our members, 
their family and friends; and

•	 To	align	our	community,	social	
and sports initiatives with the 
Institute’s strategic direction 
and objectives.

ICPAS’ social activities have been 
well received by members. Some of 
the popular activities include ICPAS 
Family Day on board Cheng ho cruise, 
LEGOLAND Malaysia trip,  Little India 
tour, universal Studios Singapore trip 
and the Chinese New Year Johor Bahru 
shopping trip.  

PA COMMuNITY  
SPIRIT AWARD
To promote civic consciousness, 
responsibi l ity  and to  faci l itate  
volunteerism among our members, 
ICPAS signed a MOu with People’s 
Association (PA) in 2010 to encourage 
members to volunteer with PA’s 
grassroots organisations (GROs) and 
contribute their professional skills to 
the GROs. 

Many of our members have provided 
valuable professional advice and shared 
their knowledge on good practices in 
financial management in their capacity 
as Citizens’ Consultative Committee 
Finance Committee members. In 
recognition of our members’ efforts 
and spirit of volunteerism, the Institute 
was conferred the PA Community 
Spirit Award 2012. The PA Community 
Spirit Award Scheme rewards and 
recognises organisations that have made 
significant contributions to PA and/or 
contributions that cut across several 
constituencies and/or CDCs under 
the “Partners of PA” award category.

CPA TOASTMASTERS’ CLuB 
25Th ANNIVERSARY
With the Institute celebrating its 50th 
anniversary in 2013, the ICPAS CPA 
Toastmasters’ club celebrated its 25th 
Anniversary on 29 May 2012. As one 
of the Institute’s oldest committee 
clubs, this event was met with much 
anticipation with more than 40 of our 
members and their guests attending. 

To add to the festivities, Toastmasters’ 
International District 80 Governor, 
Distinguished Toastmaster Michael 
Rodrigues, presented the District 80 
Long Service Award to club members 
who had served more than 20 years. 
The proud recipients were Mr Ronald 
Loo (21 years), Ms Clara Tan (24 years), 
Ms helen Lee (24 years) and former 
ICPAS council member Ms Wong Lai 
Yong (25 years).

Over 300 ICPAS members and their family and friends spent a fun-filled day at Asia’s first 
LEGOLAND in Johor Bahru!

Year in Review -
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The CPA Toastmasters’ Club was 
chartered in September 1987 as one of 
the first few activities of the Institute’s 
social committees by then-ICPAS 
President Mr Keith Tay and three 
founding members. Since its inception, 
some 200 people have gone through the 
process as Toastmasters. At its peak, 
the club had a record of 84 members. 

ICPAS APP FOR iPhONE  
AND iPAD
With the rising popularity of smart 
phones and social media, the Institute 
has rolled out ICPAS application 
(ICPAS App) for the iPhone and iPad. 
The ICPAS App provides members 
with instantaneous updates on the 
latest industry news, CPE courses, 
events and more. The ICPAS App can 
be downloaded free from the Apple 
App Store.

(Standing, from left) ICPAS Vice President  
Mr R Dhinakaran, PA Group Director  

(People Cluster) Mr Tan Kim Kee, ICPAS 
President Dr Ernest Kan, PA Group Director 
(Corporate Services) Mr Tan Kia Jin, ICPAS 

Executive Director (Policy & Strategic  
Planning/Industry Development)  

Mr Yee Cheok Hong 

(Seated, from left) ICPAS Council Member  
Ms Genevieve Chua, PA Director (Finance)  

Ms Ng Soo Koon, ICPAS COO Ms Goh  
Puay Cheh, ICPAS Council Member  

Ms Lim Kexin, ICPAS Executive Director  
(Corporate Services) Ms Janet Tan, PA Director 
(Volunteer Management) Ms Jessie Tan, ICPAS 

Manager (Member Services) Ms Sylvia Koh

At the CPA Toastmasters’ Club 25th 
Anniversary: Mr Vincent Lim, ICPAS Council 
Member and Chairman of ICPAS Community, 
Social & Sports Advisory Panel, and Regional 
Controller of Motorola Solutions, gave a speech 
titled I have no Time for Toastmasters.
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raIsINg INDUsTry ENgagEMENT aND 
DEvELOpMENT  

Many of the SMPs face challenges such as limited technical 
support and resources, difficulty in attracting and retaining 
qualified staff, and inability to expand their business due to 
their small scale of operations. This hinders their progression 
and development, which, in turn, limits their ability to seize 
emerging growth opportunities as Singapore businesses 
regionalise their operations and tap opportunities overseas.  

The establishment of the Industry Development division 
helped the Institute to significantly increase the level and 
depth of industry engagement, especially with SMPs. In 2012, 
the division launched several initiatives targeted at raising the 
productivity and capability of SMPs. These were well received, 
with strong traction garnered amongst the SMPs. The initiatives 
can be broadly categorised into three thrusts: (i) Outreach, 
(ii) Productivity and (iii) Collaboration with Government.

(i) Outreach 

ICPAS OuTREACh SEMINARS  
FOR SMPS AND SMES
In April 2012, the Institute successfully secured a LEAD 
grant of S$30,000 from SPRING to fund outreach efforts 
to promote and create awareness of government incentive 
schemes for SMPs and SMEs.  The grant was used to fund 

10 outreach seminars in 2012, which were attended by more 
than 300 SMPs and SMEs.  

(ii) Productivity 

PRODuCTIVITY SCORECARD AND 
BENChMARKING SuRVEY 
Besides outreach efforts, ICPAS also committed our efforts to 
help the accountancy sector raise productivity as part of the 
current national productivity drive. The Institute initiated a 
pilot programme, which includes a Productivity Scorecard 
and Benchmarking Survey, to measure and benchmark 
the sector’s productivity against international peers across 
the industry. Close to 200 firms participated in the survey 
conducted in 2012, with each firm receiving an individual 
report which identified potential productivity gaps with 
proposed measures to address the issue. The intention was 
for the SMPs to subsequently tap on government assistance 
and incentive schemes to further embark on initiatives to 
raise their productivity.

PILOT PRODuCTIVITY STuDY
During the year, 10 SMPs benefitted from their participation in 
a pilot productivity study initiated by the Institute.  The study 
encompassed productivity diagnostics and recommendations 
by the consultant based on SPRING’s Integrated Management 
of Productivity Activities (IMPACT) framework. An industry 
report identifying common challenges and industry best 

In order to fulfil CDAS’ vision to transform Singapore into a leading global accountancy hub for the Asia-Pacific 
region, the different stakeholders in the industry have to co-ordinate their efforts and work closely together. In 
2012, ICPAS established the Industry Development division to help drive the Institute’s efforts to upgrade the 
capabilities of SMPs. The division has been working in partnership with various government agencies such as 
SPRING Singapore (SPRING), Infocomm Development Authority of Singapore (IDA) and Workforce Development 
Agency (WDA) and other stakeholders such as the Singapore Business Federation to build capabilities and raise 
productivity in the accountancy sector, in particular public accounting firms and public accountants in business. 
 
The Institute also continued to foster and enhance our relations with key government agencies such as the Ministry 
of Finance (MOF), the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (ACRA), Singapore Accountancy 
Commission (SAC) and Monetary Authority of Singapore (MAS), which has led to increasing engagement since 
2012. These have engendered greater trust and confidence in the Institute, with these agencies now 
seeking our views and participation.  

In Partnership with Other Stakeholders



seekers to join the accounting industry as 
accounts assistants to help ease the current 
shortage of accounting technicians in the 
profession. All trainees who successfully 
complete the AAPnT will receive the 
Certified Accounting Technician (CAT) 
qualification awarded by the Association 
of Chartered Certified Accountants.
 
The programme was officially launched 
on 26 November 2012, with ICPAS 
appointed as the programme manager. 
To promote the programme and place 
potential job seekers with hiring firms, 
ICPAS co-organised a job fair with NTuC 
e2i on the same day, which saw close to 
100 job seekers registering.

ICPAS DIRECTORY
Besides raising the productivity and 
capability of the SMPs, the Institute is also 
keen to help raise the profile of SMPs as 
part of our industry branding. In line with 
this, the Industry Development division 
conceptualised the ICPAS Directory to 
serve as a dedicated platform to profile 
and feature our CPA firms and their 
service offerings. The inaugural edition 
of the ICPAS Directory was launched 
at the ICPAS Gala Dinner & Dance in 
November 2012, with government agencies 
like SPRING and the SAC providing 
separate forewords in expression of their 
support for ICPAS’ initiative.

sTrONg sUppOrT OF  
kEy sTakEHOLDErs

The Institute continued to foster and 
enhance relations with key stakeholders, 
especially government agencies, in 2012.    

CONTRIBuTION TO 
NATIONAL PRODuCTIVITY 
DRIVE
In 2012, the National Productivity and 
Continuing Education Council (NPCEC) 

identified the accountancy sector as 
one of the 16 sectors with potential 
for productivity growth. The intention 
was to develop a sectoral productivity 
roadmap to spur productivity at the (i) 
sector, (ii) enterprise, and (iii) worker 
levels. Separately, the Institute presented 
its  roadmap for industry development, 
in particular, the productivity initiatives 
for the SMPs, to MOF to facilitate the 
latter’s efforts to raise  productivity for 
the accountancy sector, among others. 

SIGNING OF MOu WITh 
ACRA AND SEVERAL 
NATIONAL BODIES
The Institute, together with several 
national bodies, signed a MOu with 
ACRA in 2012 to jointly conduct the 
Directors’ Proficiency Programme. 
The collaboration aims to raise the 
competency of the directors in their 
roles and responsibilities in financial 
reporting, helping them to comply with 
regulatory requirements. Overall, this 
will help to raise the quality of financial 
reporting and enhance investor confidence 
in Singapore.

RAISING AuDIT QuALITY 
AND PROFESSIONALISM
The Institute also worked closely with 
ACRA to develop auditing and assurance 
standards as well as to raise the quality 
of the public accounting profession in 
Singapore. ICPAS’ Auditing and Assurance 
Standards Committee conducted the 
pre-public consultation on the audit 
guidance statements to gather feedback 
from various stakeholders such as 
ACRA, and a public consultation to 
seek comments from our members. 

In Partnership with Other Stakeholders

practices, based on the aggregation of 
individual company study, was published 
in February 2013. The Institute had first 
identified an approved consultant under 
SPRING’s Innovation and Capability 
Voucher (ICV) (Productivity) scheme.  
The10 participating SMPs subsequently 
engaged the same consultant on an 
individual basis, each using the ICV 
(Productivity) voucher of S$5,000 to 
defray the cost of the consultancy.  

(iii)       Collaboration with Government

To help SMPs upgrade and enhance their 
capabilities, the Institute collaborated 
with various government agencies like 
SPRING, WDA, and IDA on initiatives 
to develop the accountancy sector.

IDA CALL-FOR-
COLLABORATION (CFC)  
In June 2012, IDA launched the Software-
as-a-Service (SaaS) Call-for-Collaboration 
(CFC) to spur the demand for and adoption 
of SaaS solutions that will help address 
sector-specific requirements and increase 
productivity, especially amongst SMEs. 
ICPAS facilitated the formation of two 
consortia, each made up of at least one 
technology vendor and 10 adopter firms. 
The two consortia have submitted their 
proposals, and more than 40 companies 
have each signed a letter of intent to 
participate in the two consortia. 

WDA ACCOuNTS ASSISTANT 
PLACE-AND-TRAIN (AAPNT) 
PROGRAMME 
The AAPnT programme for accounts 
assistants was developed by the Institute 
in collaboration with WDA. The 
programme aims to place, train and 
convert unemployed mid-career job 
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IMPLEMENTING ThE 
SINGAPORE QP  
In support of the SAC’s Singapore QP 
development efforts, the Institute participated 
in the Singapore QP Development Panel 
and various workgroups namely the 
Academic Base Workgroup, Practical 
Experience Workgroup, Technical 
Modules Workgroups, and Ethics & 
Professionalism/Integrative Business 
Solutions Workgroups, providing expertise 
in research and knowledge sharing 
through proposals and presentations. 
The Institute also participated in the 
Singapore QP Publisher tender evaluation 
committee, providing assistance in the 
evaluation of submitted tenders. 

DEVELOPING ThE TAx 
PROFESSION 
As the first accredited body for tax 
professionals in Singapore, SIATP 
aims to raise the standards of technical 
competency and capabilities of tax 
specialists. To offer more to its members, 
SIATP expanded its range of benefits and 
privileges that were offered exclusively 
to its accredited tax professionals.

In January and February 2012, SIATP, 
together with ICPAS, jointly organised 
three seminars with IRAS. Catering 
exclusively to SIATP’s accredited tax 
agents, the seminars served to provide 
an overview of the simplified Form C-S 
and its benefits. In the second half of 
the year, members were given first-hand 
experience on the ease of e-filing Form 
C-S when SIATP organised two e-filing 
workshops. Members also enjoyed 
exclusive rates that provided access 
to a range of tax-related seminars and 
courses such as the Withholding Tax 
Asia 2012 conference.

ICPAS’ Public Accounting Practice 
Committee (PAPC) also participated in 
ACRA’s six-monthly dialogue sessions 
with professional bodies during the year 
to discuss issues the profession faces. 
During the term, the PAPC provided 
its comments as part of the Institute’s 
feedback to ACRA’s Consultation Papers 
on the Review of the Accountants Act 
(Parts One and Two). 

ENGAGING RELEVANT 
GOVERNMENT-RELATED 
BODIES
During the year, the Institute’s Banking 
and Finance Committee engaged MAS in 
the revision of auditor’s reports relating 
to fund managers. The Corporate Finance 
Committee also sought the input of 
MAS in the revision of the Statement of 
Auditing Practice 24, Auditors of Public 
Offering Documents. Furthermore, the 
Institute also provided feedback to and 
received insights from MAS through 
dialogue sessions and commentaries. 
For instance, various committees such 
as the Financial Reporting Committee 
and Insurance Committee held dialogue 
sessions with MAS to discuss areas 
of concern and exchanged views on 
accounting and auditing matters. The 
Corporate Governance Committee 
responded to MAS’ Consultation Paper 
with recommendations to improve the 
revised Code of Corporate Governance, 
which was issued by MAS in May 2012. 

ICpas’ COrpOraTE 
CITIzENsHIp

Besides raising accountancy standards 
in Singapore, the Institute  carried out 
several initiatives to do our part as a 
responsible corporate citizen. During 
the year, the Institute donated towards 
the President’s Challenge and SAA-GE’s 
fundraising drive for The Straits Times 
School Pocket Money Fund. 

In addition, to promote civic responsibility, 
ICPAS’ employees packed and distributed 
necessities to 120 needy seniors and 
families residing in one-room flats. The 
Institute also encouraged our members 
as well as accounting professionals and 
businesses to pledge their support for 
the International Anti-Corruption Day 
on 9 December 2012. 

sCHOLarsHIp aND awarDs 

As the national accountancy body, ICPAS 
has a key role to play in the development 
of accountancy education in Singapore. In 
this regard, the Institute awarded ICPAS 
Scholarships, each worth S$2,000, to 12 
deserving accountancy undergraduates 
from Nanyang Technological university, 
National university of Singapore and 
Singapore Management university. 
Additionally, the most outstanding 
accountancy students in 2012 from the 
universities and Ngee Ann, Singapore 
and Temasek Polytechnics were awarded 
the ICPAS Gold Medal in recognition 
of their exceptional results. 
 

Year in Review -
Working in Partnership



bEyOND bOrDErs

DEVELOPING A GLOBAL OuTLOOK
Part of being a globally recognised professional accountancy 
body is to develop a global outlook on the profession and, 
subsequently, a voice that is respected internationally. 

The International Development and Relations department 
was established in end 2011, with its key focus on cultivating 
and developing relationships with organisations across the 
globe. In 2012, the Institute actively engaged international 
organisations and participated in global and regional events to 
enhance relations and forge partnerships with key bodies like 
IFAC and the World Bank. Our key engagements included:

•	 Chairmanship	 of	 the	meetings	 for	 the	ASEAN	
Professional Regulatory Authorities (PRAs) on the 
ASEAN Mutual Recognition Arrangement (MRA) 
framework on accountancy services

•	 Participation	in	the	IFAC	Council	meeting	held	in	
end November 2012 in Cape Town, South Africa, 
which presented a valuable platform for international 
relationship building

•	 Cooperation	with	IFAC	to	adapt	the	article	titled	Coping 
with Pressure to Lower Fees with localised content for the 
cover story in CPA Singapore journal’s November issue.  
The adapted article was later published by IFAC 
on its website.

FORGING INTERNATIONAL AND  
REGIONAL TIES
Sustaining and strengthening ties with international 
professional accountancy organisations through the 
hosting of visits is an important part of ICPAS’ vision to 
attain global recognition. The year in review proved to be 
successful, as bonds were created and solidified with many 
global bodies including the World Bank, ICAEW, CICPA 
and ICAA. Through successful global networking, we 
enhanced our status and strengthened our relationships by:
 
•	 Fostering	closer	ties	with	the	World	Bank	through	

the sharing of insights on the Memorandum of 
understanding to Strengthen Accountancy and 
Improve Collaboration, signed between IFAC and 
the donor community, leading to the possibility of 
collaboration to improve the accountancy profession 
across the ASEAN region

As part of ICPAS’ strategic programme to establish an international footprint and achieve international 
outreach, the Institute is actively enhancing international relations and forging partnerships with international 
organisations and professional bodies. We achieve this by keeping abreast of international developments and 
contributing to and enhancing the profession and industry, fostering and profiling our thought leadership, 
building our global outlook and raising our global standing, and contributing to the development of Singapore 
as an accountancy hub. 

Developing an International Footprint
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•	 Participating	as	 a	member	 in	
the newly formed AFA-MRA 
committee to raise the standards 
of the accountancy profession 
and improve the capacity of 
professional bodies in the ASEAN 
region to facilitate the successful  
adoption of the ASEAN MRA

•	 Developing	 stronger	 ties	with	
the Chinese Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants (CICPA) 
and the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants in Australia (ICAA) 
by exchanging of views and 
exploring possible  further 
collaboration such as a proposed 
visit of ICPAS’ SMP members to 
CICPA in Beijing in 2013

•	 Fostering	dialogue	and	network	
opportunities between SMPs from 
Singapore and Japan by organising 
and hosting a professional 
sharing and networking event 
in conjunction with Nanyang 
Technological university 

At the regional level, ICPAS continued 
to enhance its position in Southeast 
Asia. As a founding member of the 
AFA, the Institute participated in the 
107th to 109th AFA council meetings 
held in Australia, Cambodia and the 
Philippines during 2012. The key 
milestones achieved at the AFA Council 
meetings included:

•	 Working	closely	with	the	World	
Bank prior to and at the 109th 
AFA council  meeting, held 
in Sydney, where the World 
Bank’s proposal to identify and 
narrow development gaps among 
professional bodies in the ASEAN 
region was accepted by the AFA 
Council •	 Working	closely	with	 ICAEW	

in its successful application to 
become an Associate Member 
of AFA

Year in Review -

At the annual IFAC Council Meeting: (From left) Dr Ernest Kan, President of ICPAS, Mr Warren 
Allen, President of IFAC, and Mr Lee Fook Chiew, CEO of ICPAS 

Developing an International Footprint

Dr Ernest Kan, President of ICPAS, and Mr Lee Fook Chiew, CEO of ICPAS, attended the annual 
IFAC Council Meeting held in November 2012 in Cape Town, South Africa. 



ExECUTIvE COMMITTEE

Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong — Chairman

R. Dhinakaran 

ho Tuck Chuen

The Executive Committee (ExCO) comprising the 
Institute’s office bearers – President, Vice President 
and Treasurer – is the executive arm of the Council. 
ExCO meets monthly to deal with all matters relating 
to the development of broad policies and strategies and 
exercises a general oversight of the work programmes and 
initiatives of the Institute to ensure that these are aligned 
with the government’s strategic vision of transforming 
Singapore into an accountancy hub by 2020.

ExCO intensified its efforts on building capabilities and 
infrastructure with the appointment of a Chief Operating 
Officer in June 2012 and an Executive Director (Technical 
Knowledge Centre and Quality Assurance) in July 2012 to 
strengthen the ICPAS senior management team, which is 
headed by the Institute’s new CEO, who came on board 
in August 2012. As part of the journey to push forward 
on the Institute’s strategic intent to transform itself into 
an accountancy body with global membership, outlook 
and standing, ExCO appointed an external consultancy 
firm to facilitate the Institute’s Strategic Planning exercise 
covering the period 2013 to 2015. 

ExCO considered and endorsed an initiative on the 
establishment of honorary Technical Advisors who would 
act in an advisory capacity at the strategic level to senior 
management on current or emerging issues and trends in 

the profession and the industry. ExCO also approved key 
initiatives pertaining to member-centric engagements, 
raising productivity of the small and medium practices 
and the publication of an ICPAS directory.

ExCO provided oversight in the review of ICPAS 
Investigation & Disciplinary Rules to ensure that the 
Institute’s disciplinary process is robust and aligned with 
those of overseas professional bodies in major jurisdictions.

Good governance remains a priority with the Institute 
and in this respect, ExCO reviewed the Institute’s Group 
Structure and Board representation of its subsidiaries and 
associates by applying best governance practices where 
appropriate. It also reviewed the Institute’s procurement 
and tender procedures and authorisation limits to ensure 
that these are robust, effective and efficient. 

During the year, ExCO continues to devote significant 
time to provide direction, guidance and input to the 
ICPAS team that works closely with the secretariat of the 
Pro-Tem SAC towards the development of the Singapore 
Qualification Programme (Singapore QP). 

ExCO has oversight over operational matters such as the 
annual budget and other financial matters, staff salary 
adjustments and promotion exercise, and the award 
of ICPAS medals to deserving members. ExCO also 
considered and increased the value of the ICPAS Scholarship 
awarded each year to accountancy undergraduates from 
the Nanyang Technological university and Singapore 
Management university, and extended the scholarship to 
BBA (Accountancy) undergraduates from the National 
university of Singapore.
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aUDIT COMMITTEE

Max Loh Khum Whai – Chairman

ho Yew Kee

Sitoh Yih Pin 

The Audit Committee plays a critical role in ensuring the 
integrity of the financial statements through its oversight 
of the Institute’s financial reporting process, the internal 
control system and the audit function. 
 

The Committee was newly set up in 2012 and met up 
during the year to discuss and review the Institute’s interim 
financial statements, as well as its risk management and 
internal control practices. The internal and external audit 
plans for the Institute were also evaluated and discussed. 
 
The Audit Committee’s role also included the review of 
the annual financial statements prior to approval by the 
Council, as well as the evaluation of significant findings 
arising from the audit of the annual financial statements 
prior to approval by the Council.
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The Committee develops Singapore’s auditing and 
assurance standards, in particular by adopting standards 
issued by the International Auditing and Assurance 
Standards Board (IAASB) in conformity with Singapore’s 
regulatory environment, and by monitoring standards-
related policy and implementation issues. The Committee 
performs this role under the oversight of the Public 
Accountants Oversight Committee (PAOC), which 
approves the auditing and assurance standards to be 
followed by public accountants so that the development 
of standards is robust, credible and promotes public 
confidence.

The Committee’s area of strategic focus is set based on 
the Committee’s mandate and its initiatives are developed 
to achieve its stated purpose and objectives. During the 
year, the Committee completed the following new/revised 
standards and guidance statements: 

•	 Adoption	of	International	Standard	on	Assurance	
Engagement (ISAE) 3402,  Assurance Reports on 
Controls at a Service Organisation

•	 Withdrawal	of	Audit	Guidance	Statement	(AGS)	8,		
Reports on the Internal Control Procedures of Service 
Organisations

•	 Revision	of	AGS	1,	Sample Independent Auditor’s 
Reports

•	 Development	of	AGS	9,	Opinion on Receipts, 
Expenditure, Investment of Moneys and the 
Acquisition and Disposal of Assets by Statutory 
Boards

•	 Development	of	AGS	10,	 Joint Audits

The developments of AGS 9 and AGS 10 were motivated 
by the absence of any guidance in the related areas in 
Singapore. The Committee formed a Sub-Committee 
each for AGS 9 and AGS 10, comprising representatives 
from several audit firms to look into the development 
of these AGSs. As part of the pre-public consultation 
process, the Committee gathered feedback from four 
selected statutory boards and the Accountant General’s 
Department to obtain their comments on the proposed 
AGS 9. The same process was carried out for AGS 10 
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where the Committee obtained comments from the 
Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (ACRA) 
and the Singapore Exchange. Further to this pre-public 
consultation process, both the proposed AGSs had 
undergone a month-long public consultation process to 
seek comments from the Institute’s members.

During the year, the Institute, on the recommendation of 
the Committee and the approval of the Council, provided 
its comments to IAASB’s Invitation to Comment on 
Improving the Auditor’s Report. The Committee formed 
a Sub-Committee, comprising representatives from 
several audit firms and other organisations. Feedback 
was sought from the members through a month-long 
public consultation process and three focus groups were 
organised to engage and solicit views from key stakeholder 
groups – users and preparers of financial statements, 
practitioners, regulators and public agencies. Comments 
received from the various stakeholder groups were shared 
with ACRA. After incorporating all relevant comments, 
the comment letter was then submitted to IAASB. As 
part of its outreach program to solicit feedback, IAASB 
held three roundtables in New York, Brussels and Kuala 
Lumpur (KL). Dr Ernest Kan, President of ICPAS, and Ms 
Lim Ai Leen, Executive Director, Technical Knowledge 
Centre and Quality Assurance, represented the Institute 
at the roundtable in KL to present the feedback received. 

During the year, the Committee also carried out initiatives 
to support outreach to preparers and promote audit 
quality. Following the many successful initiatives under 
the Clarity Project targeting auditors, the Committee 
organised a seminar titled An Effective Audit: Know 
What It Takes to reach out to preparers of financial 
statements. The seminar, supported by the Singapore 
Exchange, provided an overview of the audit process 
so that participants can appreciate the value an audit 
brings to their companies and how it adds credibility to 
their financial statements. Furthermore, in June 2012, 
Clarity Bulletin 2 – A Practical Approach to the Clarified 
Singapore Standards on Auditing (SSAs) was issued to 
provide practical guidance to auditors when applying and 
implementing the Clarified SSAs. 

aUDITINg aND assUraNCE sTaNDarDs COMMITTEE
Yeoh Oon Jin – Chairman Loh Lee Kim Julia Tay – Observer from ACRA
Shariq Barmaky – Dy Chairman Mak Keat Meng (Alternate: Sherry Quark)

Ravinthran Arumugam Ng Wee Leng (Alternate: Julie Ng) John Teo Woon Keng

Basil Chan Joshua Ong Kian Guan Lucas Tran Phuoc 

Kuan Cheng Tuck Seow Jean Lin Jack Wang Ying Yang

Alex Lee hoe Yuan Premila Gowri Shankar Yeo Boon Chye

Paul Lee Seng Meng Siew Wun Mui



baNkINg & FINaNCE COMMITTEE
Chua Kim Chiu – Chairman Lim Tze Chern (appointed on 2 May 2012)

Cheng Ai Phing – Dy Chairperson Dominic Nixon

Balwinder Singh Bagary (appointed on 2 May 2012) Ong Ai Boon

Chan Yoke Meng (appointed on 2 May 2012) Ong Siew Mooi 

ho Kok Yong Sandy Tee (appointed on 2 May 2012)

Lee Sze Yeng Brian Thung hock Lai 

Leong Kok Keong Wilson Woo Siew Wah

The Committee addresses issues relating to the banking 
and finance industry, typically by deliberating and 
providing comments on proposed changes in accounting 
standards and regulatory requirements affecting industry 
participants. We work closely with other committees 
within the Institute on matters pertaining to accounting, 
auditing or reporting issues. 

During the year, the Committee proactively engaged the 
Monetary Authority of Singapore (MAS) in the revision 
of auditor’s special reports relating to fund managers. In 
addition, the Committee drafted the terms of reference for 
the auditor review of capital adequacy risk requirements for 
merchant banks and also issued the revised Recommended 
Accounting Practice (RAP) 7, Reporting Framework for Unit 
Trusts, with the assistance of respective working groups. 

The Committee also worked with the Audit Guidance 
Statement (AGS) 1 sub-committee of the Auditing and 
Assurance Standards Committee (AASC) on the revision 
of AGS 1 auditor’s reports in relation to the banking and 
finance industry. 

Presently, the Committee is working with the AGS 1 sub-
committee of the AASC and the Insurance Committee 
on auditor’s reports for the Central Provident Fund 
Investments Scheme.

In its continuing efforts to address issues affecting 
the banking and finance industry and to engage the 
relevant regulatory authorities for knowledge sharing on 
developments in accounting standards and regulatory 
requirements, the Committee had a dialogue session on 
15 October 2012 with MAS on the following matters:

•	 Collective	impairment	under	MAS	Notice	to	Banks	
612 and MAS Notice to Merchant Banks 1005; 

•	 Regulatory	capital	requirements	for	holders	of	Capital	
Market Services Licences;

•	 The	Dodd-Frank	Act	and	proposed	EU	regulations	on	
OTC derivatives; 

•	 Feedback	from	MAS	or	areas	of	concerns	for	MAS	for	
FY2012; and

•	 Issues	and	observations	noted	from	external	audits	
during 2012.

bOarD OF EDUCaTION aND  
ExaMINErs 

Gillian Yeo hian heng – Chairperson

Cheung Pui Yuen

ho Yew Kee 

Lian Wee Cheow 

Pang Yang hoong

Sarjit Singh

Patricia Tan Mui Siang

The Board of Education and Examiners oversees the ICPAS 
Professional Examination (ICPAS PE), an examination  

route for overseas accounting graduates or graduates in 
related fields to qualify as a CPA Singapore. To date, there 
are a total of 245 graduates.

ICPAS PE was refreshed in 2012 in a number of areas 
including expanded syllabuses for eight modules 
and a more well-rounded curriculum that meets the 
needs of a challenging workplace. It also implemented 
computer-based testing, in collaboration with Institute 
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales 
(ICAEW) for three modules on a monthly basis 
throughout the year. Study manuals were provided 
to better guide candidates in preparing for the 
examination, again collaborating with ICAEW for 
relevant modules. Relevant policies and procedures 
were reviewed and new accreditation guidelines were  
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The Committee has grown from strength to strength 
and welcomed five new members in 2012: Genevieve 
Chua, Goh Geok Cheng, Anita Ler, Vincent Lim and  
Danielle Yew.

The Committee provides views and guidance to the 
Institute in rolling out relevant and targeted programmes 
to meet our members’ needs, in particular, those who 
are finance professionals. A major effort in 2012 was to 
help the Institute integrate its existing initiatives into 
a coherent CFO Strategic Framework. The key pillars 
include Research, Capacity Building (both applied and 
academic), resources and recognition, with an overarching 
competency framework. After a review, the strategic 
framework was endorsed by the CFO Committee.

To facilitate the implementation of the framework, the 
ICPAS CFO Survey was conducted by ICPAS Research in 
September 2012.  The survey, which was aimed at better 
understanding the needs of our CFOs and senior finance 
professionals, received strong response from our CFO 
community and was covered by the media. In addition 
to providing an in-depth understanding of the needs of 
CFOs and the CFO aspirants, the study identified the 
critical competencies required of a modern CFO to 
succeed in economically challenging times.

The Committee is heartened by the overwhelming 
response for the various CFO-related events that were 

developed prior to the launch of the refreshed ICPAS 
PE. Since the launch in July 2012, more than 300 new 
applicants have been approved and we have registered 
the highest annual intake to date.

The Board approved the examination results of the 
February, May and November 2012 examinations and the 
appointment or re-appointment of examiners, assessors 
and markers. In view of the impending launch of the 
Singapore Qualification Programme (Singapore QP) in 
June 2013, the Board provided advice on ICPAS’ plan to 
develop and launch a Foundation Programme under the 
Singapore QP’s Framework. 

During the reporting period, the Board accredited SIM 
university (uniSIM)’s Bachelor of Accountancy degree 
for direct admission to CPA Singapore membership. 
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organised during the year. These included the thought-
leadership ICPAS CFO Roundtable, ICPAS CFO Forum 
as well as seminars with various domain knowledge 
partners. Committee members also participated in 
the Financial Leadership Forum, which the Institute 
jointly organised with Robert half, and the inaugural 
CFO Connect Symposium, organised by the Singapore  
CFO Institute.

These events provide a platform for ICPAS members 
and high-profile business leaders to meet, network and 
explore best finance practices, practical approaches 
and strategies for CFOs today. They focussed on 
pertinent CFO topics, with an applied and practical 
approach in addressing issues such as SGx 1207, 
regulatory changes, corporate governance and cash 
flow management. These topics are close to the heart 
of professional accountants in business. There were 
also numerous thought-leadership commentaries on 
corporate governance matters related to CFOs during 
the year that were published in leading publications 
such as The Business Times.  

The Committee recognises the increasing demands 
faced by the profession. Moving forward, the Committee 
will continue to serve the professional needs of its 
members and will seek to increase dialogue with our 
CFOs and other senior finance professionals as well as 
professional accounting firms in Singapore. 

In addition, the Board also approved the granting of 
exemptions from ICPAS PE’s three optional modules 
for university of London’s degree graduates for their 
following programmes: 

•	 Bachelor	of	Accounting	and	Finance
•	 Bachelor	of	Banking	and	Finance
•	 Bachelor	of	Accounting	with	Law

Candidates aspiring to be CPA Singapore are expected 
to observe proper rules and regulations, and adhere to 
good conduct and practices at all times. The Board took 
appropriate disciplinary actions against candidates who 
did not comply with ICPAS PE’s rules and regulations. 
These included the issuance of written warnings and 
appropriate action to candidates for misconduct during 
the November 2012 examination.

CFO COMMITTEE
Jeann Low Ngiap Jong - Chairperson Goh Geok Cheng Wong Lai Ping

Chia Nam Toon ho Tuck Chuen Danielle Yew Woon Theng

Chow Kam Wing Anita Ler

Genevieve Chua Kwee huay Vincent Lim Boon Seng



The panel responded to the diverse spread of members’ 
interests and worked with Members Engagement & Events 
to organise a wide range of events and activities.

CHINese NeW year sHOPPING sPrees
A total of 120 members and guests bundled themselves 
into three bus loads for a trip to the newly minted Johor 
Premium Outlets in Johor Bahru, where they enjoyed a 
full day of shopping.

In addition to that, 37 members and guests gathered to 
enjoy a hassle-free shopping spree around Singapore at 
various local factories of Chinese New Year goodies.

ICPas – LaW sOCIeTy NeTWOrKING
Twenty-seven members went on a networking session 
with members of the Law Society at the AuDI showroom. 
This unique networking session was tied in with the 
launch of the AuDI A2.

Day OUT aT UNIVersaL sTUDIOs sINGaPOre
A total of 116 members and their families spent a 
fruitful day at universal Studios Singapore, where they 
tried out the different rides at the theme park. For many 
who attended, family bonding was the key highlight of  
the event. 

LITTLe INDIa TOUr
This event met with overwhelming response from 
members, garnering interest that almost doubled the 
allocated number of 15 members and guests per session. 
This resulted in the Committee having to cater two 
sessions. In all, 26 members and guests learnt about 
the history and traditions of our Indian forefathers as 
they toured the vicinity and were guided by a museum 
volunteer, who is also an ICPAS member. 

ICPas FaMILy Day 2012
This annual event never fails to attract our members, 
and the event was sold out within two hours. A total of 
179 members and guests boarded Cheng ho on a three-
hour cruise around the Southern Islands, where they were 
treated to an aerial fly-past as well as a spectacular fireworks 
display that were part of the National Day Preview.

eDUCaTION TaLK
More than 200 members and guests attended an educational 
talk on the topic – Introduction to Forex Trading.

baTaM esCaPaDe
A close-knit group of 17 members and guests went on a 
short getaway to Batam. This trip provided a platform 
for communication between our members and staff 
and presented an  excellent opportunity for them to 
interact. 

ICPas breaKFasT TaLK serIes
A new initiative by ICPAS, the first breakfast talk was 
launched in October 2012. Over the last quarter of 2012, 
110 members have attended the breakfast talks, which 
covered different thematic topics for the three sessions.  

Day TrIP TO LeGOLaND
More than 300 members and their guests spent a fun-filled 
day at the first LEGO theme park in Asia – LEGOLAND 
Malaysia. This day trip saw members and their guests 
trying out the different rides and games that were offered 
at the park. 

OFF TO THe MOVIes 
The nearly three-hour movie screening of The Hobbit: 
An Unexpected Journey was attended by more than 150 
members and their guests, and was held at Suntec City. 

COMMUNITy, sOCIaL & spOrTs aDvIsOry paNEL
Vincent Lim Boon Seng – Chairman helen Lee Lai Ken

Lim Kexin – Dy Chairperson Eleana Tan Sze Ying

Philip Aw Vern Chun Wong Lai Yong

Anna Chen heung Kwan Yim Kam May

Khoo Shee Fei Yoong Ee Chuan
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The Committee discusses relevant issues relating to corporate 
finance matters and also provides inputs to or seeks the views 
of regulatory authorities and other relevant organisations. In 
addition, the Committee works closely with other committees 
within the Institute on matters pertaining to accounting and 
auditing standards, as well as to provide inputs on exposure 
drafts and consultation papers to international standard setters.

During the year, the Committee continued to engage the 
Monetary Authority of Singapore (MAS) on the revision 
of the Statement of Auditing Practice (SAP) 24, Auditors 
of Public Offering Documents. 

A Sub-Committee was also formed with members of the 
Auditing and Assurance Standards Committee (AASC) 

FaMILy FUN aT THe ZOO
With a preview of the pandas and a glimpse of the 
River Safari, 110 members and their guests went to 
the Singapore Zoological Gardens where they spent a 
meaningful Friday.

sPeeCHCraFT 2012
A four-part Speechcraft workshop was organised by CPA 
Toastmasters’ Club. More than 35 people attended and 17 
members from the group were coached on their public 
speaking and presentation skills. 

CPA Toastmasters’ Club also celebrated its 25th 
anniversary in May 2012, with more than 50 people, 
including the District Governor of Toastmasters 
International and ICPAS President, attending this joyous 
milestone.
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to redevelop an Audit Guidance Statement (AGS) on 
Comfort Letters and Due Diligence Meetings to provide 
guidance to reporting accountants when issuing a comfort 
letter for an offering of securities in Singapore. 

The Committee also considered the implications of 
the International Standard on Assurance Engagements 
(ISAE) 3420, Assurance Reports on the Process to Compile 
Pro Forma Financial Information Included in a Prospectus, 
when adopted in Singapore and provided its inputs to the 
relevant Sub-Committee formed under AASC. 

Lastly, the Committee discussed the implications of 
some of the Singapore Exchange Listing Rules on the 
profession.

CPa GaMes 2012
The CPA Games 2012 held a record number of 23 games 
and saw a higher level of participation from different firms. 
The opening ceremony in September was attended by more 
than 140 people. After three months of healthy and stiff 
competition, PricewaterhouseCoopers was awarded the 
Championship Trophy. The Games closed in December, 
with participation from more than 150 people.

INTer PrOFessIONaLs GaMes 2012 
Inter Professionals Games (IPG) are held annually among 
six professions – accountants, lawyers, engineers, surveyors, 
architects and doctors. This year’s Championship winner was 
from the Law Society, with ICPAS coming in a close second 
position. It will be ICPAS’ turn to organise the IPG in 2013. 

The panel aims to continuously review the needs of 
members, extend ICPAS’ reach in the community and 
increase value to members.

COrpOraTE FINaNCE COMMITTEE
Tham Tuck Seng – Chairman Tan Tiong heng Wong Kian Kok

ho Kim Wai Tan Tze Gay Danielle Yew Woon Theng

Mah Kah Loon Roger Tay Puay Cheng

Ng Jiak See Teh Seng Leong



A key objective of the Corporate Governance Committee 
is to stress the importance of corporate governance issues 
to our members and the general public as well as to 
promote fairness, transparency and accountability in the 
conduct of business. In doing so, the Committee leveraged 
upon the expertise and broad experiences of its members 
as audit professionals, consultants, company directors and 
academicians.

As part of this objective, the Committee, under the ambit 
of ICPAS, released the findings of the research project – “A 
study on the profile of Audit Committees (ACs) of listed 
companies in Singapore 2011” in April 2012. The project 
was initiated by the Committee with the aim of providing 
an understanding of the compliance of ACs with respect 
to the requirements under the Singapore Companies 
Act and Code of Corporate Governance, and a general 
description of the state of the ACs of listed companies in 
Singapore. The three major observations were: 

•	 an	increasing	number	of	financially	trained	
individuals holding chairmanship and membership 
positions in ACs;

•	 a	decrease	in	the	number	of	individuals	holding	
multiple AC chairmanship and memberships;

•	 an	observed	trend	of	an	increasing	number	of	
alternate directors.

The Revised Code of Corporate Governance was issued by 
the Monetary Authority of Singapore (MAS) in May 2012. 
The Committee had previously provided recommendations 
for the Revised Code as part of ICPAS’ response in its 
commentary letters on MAS’ Consultation Paper.  

Overall, there were three key trends in corporate 
governance that were observed in Singapore in 2012. 
These trends arose due to the changing economic climate 
and were further reinforced by the current environment 
of economic uncertainty and a greater focus on good 
corporate governance. The three key trends were: 

•	 an	enhanced	focus	on	risk	management;
•	 clearer	definition	and	accountability	of	Directors’	

duties and responsibilities; and 
•	 greater	transparency	and	Directors’	independence.

The Committee provided its comments to The Business Times 
article titled “Corporate governance: Year in review”, that was 
published on 29 December 2012, with the Committee Chair 
being quoted on the evolving role of our CFOs, in particular, how 
they are now expected to become effective key strategic partners 
to their CEOs in terms of strategic business planning and risk 
management. In addition, there were also numerous thought-
leadership commentaries on corporate governance matters that 
were published in The Business Times during the year. 

COrpOraTE gOvErNaNCE COMMITTEE
R. Dhinakaran – Chairman Foo See Liang Mohan Menon

Bill Bowman Andy Gan Lai Chiang Seah Gek Choo

Anthony Cheong Fook Seng ho Yew Kee Albert Tan Tiong heng

Robin Chin Sin Beng Irving Low

Cpa sINgapOrE EDITOrIaL aDvIsOry paNEL 
Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong – Chairman Cheng Nam Sang Stuart Pallister 

Lee Su Shyan – Dy Chairperson ho Tuck Chuen Alfred Shee Ping Fatt

Tan hun Tong – Dy Chairman Jeann Low Ngiap Jong Tan Boen Eng

In 2012, the editorial advisory panel met to provide counsel 
and guidance on strategic matters pertaining to the journal.

The results of the readership satisfaction survey in 2012 
were shared with the panel members, with more readers 
rating the journal as “good” or “excellent” in most categories.

Based on the survey findings, the panel members gave their 
feedback and further ideas for improvement. In line with 
the survey finding that readers valued technical articles, 
panel members suggested that thought-leadership articles 
and technical features should make up a greater segment of 

the editorial content. These suggestions were effected from 
October 2012.  

With the journal now available online and via the ICPAS 
Mobile App, the editorial team sounded out the panel on 
whether the online versions could be a replacement for 
printed copies. While the suggestion could possibly reduce 
journal production costs, the panel members recommended 
that the Institute continues to offer both printed and online 
versions. The rationale was that the Institute should adopt 
the best practices of international accountancy bodies, 
most of which provide both versions. 
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The Committee actively engaged industry groups and 
other organisations, explored new communication 
channels for outreach opportunities and held robust 
discussions on emerging financial reporting topics and 
issues. These initiatives were undertaken through four 
sub-committees.

The Committee will continue to work with the 
Accounting Standards Council (ASC) towards full 
convergence with the International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs) and International Accounting 
Standards (IASs) issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB).
 
[1] THe COre sUb-COMMITTee
During the year, the Core Sub-Committee continually 
engaged the ASC in reviewing new accounting proposals 
and discussing implementation issues. An area of 
focus for both the ASC and the Core Sub-Committee, 
working through their respective working groups, was 
on the revised Revenue Exposure Draft (ED) issued by  
the IASB.

The Core Sub-Committee proactively engaged industry 
groups and other relevant agencies and organisations 
to communicate new or revised standards to the public 
in general. Discussions were held with the Monetary 
Authority of Singapore on issues regarding the application 
of the consolidation accounting standards. In addition, 
we continually engaged the Inland Revenue Authority of 
Singapore on the tax consequences of accounting issues. 

The Core Sub-Committee also worked with the Auditing 
and Assurance Standards Committee in developing a 
template for the related party disclosure requirements of 
key management personnel to enhance consistency and 
efficiency.
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During the year, the Core Sub-Committee discussed 
and recommended comment letters on the following 
Exposure Drafts (EDs) and Draft Interpretations (DIs) 
issued by the IASB (in chronological order, according to 
date of issuance of comment letter to IASB) to the Council 
of the Institute for submission to IASB:

•	 ED	Government Loans (Proposed amendments to IFRS 1);
•	 ED	Investment Entities;
•	 Revised	ED	Revenue from Contracts with Customers;
•	 ED	Transition Guidance (Proposed amendments to 

IFRS 10);
•	 Invitation	to	Comment	IASB and IFRS Interpretations 

Committee Due Process Handbook;
•	 ED	Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010–2012 Cycle;
•	 DI	Levies Charged by Public Authorities on Entities 

that Operate in a Specific Market; and
•	 DI	Put Options Written on Non-controlling Interests.

As of 31 December 2012, the Core Sub-Committee was 
considering the following proposed EDs issued by the IASB:

•	 ED	Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011–2013 Cycle;
•	 ED	Equity Method: Share of Other Net Asset Changes 

(Proposed amendments to IAS 28);
•	 ED	Classification and Measurement: Limited 

Amendments to IFRS 9 (Proposed amendments to 
IFRS 9 (2010));

•	 ED	Clarification of Acceptable Methods of 
Depreciation and Amortisation (Proposed 
amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38);

•	 ED	Sale or Contribution of Assets between an 
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Proposed 
amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28); and

•	 ED	Acquisition of an Interest in a Joint Operation 
(Proposed amendment to IFRS 11).

FINaNCIaL rEpOrTINg COMMITTEE
Tham Sai Choy – Chairman Kok Moi Lre

Sajjad Akhtar Thanabalan Ladamuthu (appointed on 2 May 2012)

Shariq Barmaky Max Loh Khum Whai (appointed on 2 May 2012)

Boon Yong Chiang Ng Eng Juan

Cheng Ai Phing (appointed on 2 May 2012) Ng Joo Khin 

Chua Kim Chiu (appointed on 2 May 2012) Tan Boon Siong

Susan Foong Chooi Chin Tan Chin Poh (appointed on 27 June 2012)

Peter Jacob (appointed on 2 May 2012) Paul Tan (appointed on 2 May 2012)

Keoy Soo Earn (appointed on 15 May 2012) Pearl Tan hock Neo

Irene Khoo (appointed on 2 May 2012) Tan Seng Choon 

Reinhard Klemmer (appointed on 2 May 2012) henry Tan Song Kok



[2] THe eDUCaTION sUb-COMMITTee
During the term, the Education Sub-Committee held a 
seminar on the new Charities Accounting Standards (CAS) 
to help educate and raise awareness of the CAS in the 
charity sector and enable the management of charities and 
preparers of its financial statements to better understand 
the key differences between the CAS and FRSs, and the 
key implications of adopting and transiting to the CAS. It 
was a sell-out success attracting more than 200 participants 
comprising auditors, finance staff, CFOs, CEOs, audit 
committee members and board of directors. Of these, more 
than 50 per cent were from the charity sector. 

Industry-specific workshops for the building and 
construction industry and fund management industry 
were held in collaboration with the Real Estate Developers 
Association, Singapore Contractors Association Ltd and the 
Singapore Venture Capital & Private Equity Association.

[3] THe FOCUs GrOUP sUb-COMMITTee
A focus group discussion by industry representatives on 
the revised Revenue ED issued by the IASB was held. The 
feedback solicited was included in our response on the 
revised Revenue ED that was submitted to the IASB in 
March 2012. 

[4] THe VaLUaTION sUb-COMMITTee
The Valuation Sub-Committee is a new Sub-Committee 
and addresses valuation-related matters, specifically 
implementation and application issues relating to accounting 
standard on fair value measurements. The Valuation Sub-
Committee is organising educational outreach seminars to 
be held in 2013 on fair value measurement for both preparers 
of financial statements and valuers. 

meetings to discuss the review of financial statements. 
One hundred and twenty sets of financial statements (79 
listed companies and 41 private limited companies) were 
distributed for review. The FSRC’s industry focus for this 
term is on commodities, telecommunications/transport, 
insurance, finance companies, real estate, oil and gas, and 
shipping. The reviews done by six sub-committees were 
further discussed by the Core Group before they were 
issued.

The Financial Statements Review Committee (FSRC) of 
the Institute reviews audited financial statements with 
the objective of drawing practising members’ attention to 
areas where the presentation or content of the financial 
statements falls short of compliance with the Singapore 
Financial Reporting Standards (SFRS) and the Singapore 
Standards on Auditing (SSAs).

During the 2012/2013 term, FSRC held two main committee 
meetings, four Core Group meetings and 12 sub-committee 

FINaNCIaL sTaTEMENTs rEvIEw COMMITTEE
Cheng Ai Phing - Chairperson Paul Leow Chung Chong Yam Soon Teo Chai Choo

Chen Voon hoe Philip Ling Soo hwa Tham Chee Soon

Robin Chin Sin Beng Ng hock Lee Joseph Toh Kian Leong

Choo Eng Beng William Ng Wee Liang David Jason Waller

Goh Swee hong Pong Siew Inn Wong Sook Yee

Adrian Koh hian Yan Poon Yew Wah Woo E-Sah

Kok Moi Lre Douglas Tan Kay Yeow James xu Jun

Lai Keng Wei Tan Swee ho Yeo Boon Chye

David Anthony Leaver Tay Boon Suan

Lee Eng Kian Tay Guat Peng
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COMMITTEES’ REvIEw

The Core Group, chaired by Ms Cheng Ai Phing, comprises 
the chairpersons of the six sub-committees as follows:

sUb-COMMITTEE CHaIrpErsON
1 Tan Swee ho 

2 David Anthony Leaver

3 Yeo Boon Chye

4 Goh Swee hong 

5 Kok Moi Lre

6 Joseph Toh Kian Leong

Generally there have been improvements in the standard 
of disclosure. however, there were still boiler plate 
disclosures, some of which were not relevant to the 
companies. For certain sets of financial statements 
reviewed, a few practising members were found to be not 

conversant with the new and revised SFRS and the SSAs, 
and they were advised to take appropriate action to update 
themselves on the standards. Two practising members 
were found wanting in the discharge of their professional 
duties and were subsequently referred to the Accounting 
and Corporate Regulatory Authority for further action. 
Every year, the FSRC publishes on the Institute’s website 
its observations on common non-compliance of the 
standards for members’ reference. These observations are 
further publicised in an annual seminar held during the 
last quarter of the year. 

On 19 October 2012, the Committee conducted a three-
quarter-day seminar on its observations compiled from its 
reviews on financial statements over the past 12 months. 
The seminar, which was attended by over 420 participants 
from accounting firms, the statutory boards and members 
from various industries, included two question-and-
answer sessions. 

The Advisory Panel aims to advise the Institute on IT-
related matters in meeting its strategic objectives, and to 
advance the members’ interest in the adoption of IT. 
 
In June 2012, the Advisory Panel proposed 
recommendations on IT adoption for the Council’s 
deliberation to improve the productivity of Small & 
Medium Practitioners (SMPs) and members serving in 
the Small & Medium Enterprises (SMEs).

The Advisory Panel also noted the following IT initiatives 
that were implemented by the Institute for the year 
2012/2013:

NeW sysTeM IMPLeMeNTaTIONs
In August 2012, SAA Global Education offered online 
registration and payment for ACCA and CAT Computer-
Based Examinations (CBE). The school has since seen a 
steady take-up rate and aims to convert 30 per cent of its 
total CBE enrolment through its ePortal in year 2013. To 
enhance the learning experience of the students, a new 
learning management system using the Moodle platform 
will be ready in Q1 2013.

In July 2012, the Examinations and Qualifications division 
implemented a system with two ePortals, one of which is 
a public website with a content management system, and 
the other being a portal for candidates to enrol online for 
Professional Examinations, download study materials and 
print their transcripts. 

MObILe aPP by ICPas
In November 2012, the Institute launched a mobile app for 
iPad and iPhone to provide access to resources such as the 
CPA Journal (full access for ICPAS members, and preview 
for non-members), latest industry developments and trends, 
new initiatives from ICPAS, events to boost knowledge and 
professional development and notifications on business 
networking sessions. The app will be made available on other 
mobile platforms, together with additional functionalities, in 
the phase 2 development targeted for release in 2013.

CONsOLIDaTION OF MICrOsITes
The Institute plans to adopt a common content management 
system in 2013 to better manage all our microsites, contents, 
features and design templates, and harmonise the look and 
feel to bring out our branding identity.

INFOrMaTION TECHNOLOgy sErvICEs aDvIsOry paNEL 
Lee Jeng Wah – Chairman Themin Suwardy

Benjamin Chiang Wing Wai Thio Tse Gan

Philip Kwa Teow huat Yoong Ee Chuan

Lyon Poh Leong Yeow



Members of the Committee engaged in activities that 
provided updates on current regulatory requirements 
and raised awareness in insolvency legislation. Deserving 
special mention for their efforts are the Chairman and 
Mr Bob Yap, who have actively contributed to raising 
the awareness on insolvency by collaborating with the 
Institute to write articles on the subject, which were 
published in CPA Singapore journal.

The Committee issued three exposure drafts (EDs) on 
Insolvency Practitioners’ Guidelines (IPGs) for insolvency 
practitioners in December, and they are as follows:

•	 ED	IPG	1:	Ethical	Guidelines	for	Insolvency	
Practitioners

•	 ED	IPG	2:	Remuneration	Guidelines	for	Insolvency	
Practitioners; and 

In continuance of our renewal process, which commenced 
in 2011, another three new members joined the Committee 
in 2012, in addition to the four new members who had 
joined the Committee in 2011. The Committee wishes to 
express its appreciation to the immediate past members 
for their dedication and contributions to this Committee.

The Committee held several meetings during the year to 
hold discussions on pertinent accounting and auditing 
matters pertaining to the insurance industry, with a focus 
on the Monetary Authority of Singapore (MAS) in the 
following areas:

- Review on Risk-Based Capital Framework for Insurers 
in Singapore; and

- Proposed Revision to the Definition of “Singapore 
Policy” and “Trade Credit Insurer”. 

•	 ED	IPG	3:	Book	and	Record-Keeping	Guidelines	for	
Insolvency Practitioners  

It is hoped that the IPGs, which are expected to be issued 
in 2013, will provide practical guidance to the Institute’s 
Members who are also insolvency practitioners. We plan 
to roll-out the exposure drafts for additional IPGs in 2013. 

The Committee places great importance on raising the 
competency of insolvency practitioners through relevant 
CPD courses and looks forward to further supporting the 
Institute through both our continued contributions to 
the CPA Singapore journal on insolvency issues, as well 
as issuance of additional IPGs to serve as guidance for 
Members who are also insolvency practitioners. 

These discussions culminated in the drafting of comment 
letters, which were submitted to the MAS, upon obtaining 
the Council’s approval.

The Committee also held its annual dialogue session with 
the MAS on 18 September 2012 to exchange views on 
various accounting and auditing matters relating to the 
insurance industry. 

The Committee is currently collaborating with the 
Banking and Finance Committee on the revision of 
independent auditors’ reports relating to the Central 
Provident Fund Investment Scheme. These reports are 
expected to be finalised in 2013.

INsOLvENCy praCTICEs COMMITTEE
Don ho Mun Tuke - Chairman Victor Goh Yeow Kiang

Aw Eng hai Andrew Grimmett (appointed on 2 May 2012)

Chan Yee hong Leow Quek Shiong

Chee Yoh Chuang Seshadri Rajagopalan

Goh Thien Phong Bob Yap Cheng Ghee

INsUraNCE COMMITTEE
Mak Keat Meng – Chairman Lau Kam Yuen (appointed on 2 May 2012)

Tony Cheong Jin Keat Jason Neo Choong hua

Chew Chu Seng (appointed on 2 May 2012) Rina Tan Bee hong (appointed on 2 May 2012)

Eileen Giam Woo Shea Leen
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MEMbErsHIp COMMITTEE

ho Yew Kee – Chairman

Peter Chay Fook Yuen

Khoo ho Tong 

Khoo Teng Aun

Yang Ching Chao

This Committee is responsible for reviewing all membership 
matters and processes. It makes monthly recommendations 
to the Council on the admission of Associates and CPAs 
Singapore, Fellows, membership reclassifications, resignations  
and reinstatements. 

In total, the Committee reviewed and recommended 1,515 
new Associates and 1,275 CPAs Singapore in 2012 for the 
Council’s approval. In order to cater to the different needs 
of our diverse group of members, the Committee met on 
various occasions to deliberate on appeal cases, propose 
new membership schemes and revisit existing procedures 
for greater efficiency and effectiveness.

NOMINaTIONs COMMITTEE

Yeoh Oon Jin  – Chairman

Andy Gan Lai Chiang

ho Tuck Chuen

Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong

Steven Phan Swee Khim

The Nominations Committee was appointed by the 
Council in January 2012 in accordance with Article 65 
of the revised ICPAS Constitution.

The Nominations Committee (NC) comprises 
five members of the Institute, with the majority, 
including the Chairman, being Council members. The 
Nominations Committee assists the Council in sourcing 
and identifying candidates for appointments to the 
Council and the Institute’s committees as well as external 

For 2012, the Membership Committee also updated the 
ICPAS (Membership and Fees) Rules, to be consistent 
with the change of the ICPAS Constitution. It has also 
reviewed and recommended for approval the Bachelor of 
Accounting by uniSim for membership to the Institute.

With the outreach initiatives and review of various 
schemes to assist members, the Institute now has 
more than 25,000 members making contributions in 
businesses across industries in Singapore and around 
the world.

The Membership Administration Department actively 
engages CPA firms and all other sectors of business to 
build good working relationships. This is to provide better 
support on membership-related matters and to assist in 
making the membership in the Institute valuable.

The Accredited Employer Scheme, which was introduced 
in 2010, has continued to garner positive awareness 
and provides ease for membership application. The 
Membership Administration Department continues to 
expand the list of CPA firms under this scheme.

appointments. In addition, the Committee ensures that 
nominees for election to the Council comply with the 
requirements on eligibility as set out in the provisions of 
the Constitution.

During the year, the Nominations Committee carried 
out the following activities:

(i) Reviewed the composition and structure of the 
Council in terms of skill sets and experience, size 
and age and assessed the need to provide for wider 
representation by membership and sector.

(ii) Identified suitable candidates for the election 
of Council members in the 2012 AGM to bring 
in fresh talents and diverse perspectives to the 
Council. This resulted in seven new members who 
are leading professionals from diverse industries 
coming on board the Council, bringing the total 
composition to 20. 

INvEsTIgaTION COMMITTEE

Peter Chay Fook Yuen – Chairman

Lee Chow Soon – Lay Person

Ong Sim ho

Nagaraj Sivaram 

Kelvin Tan Wee Peng 

During the year, the Committee deliberated on a case 
against a CPA Singapore who is a public accountant and 
decided to refer the case to the Accounting and Corporate 
Regulatory Authority. Investigations into two cases against 
Members are ongoing.
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(iii) Reviewed nominations received for appointment 
to the various ICPAS technical committees  
vis-a-vis the current composition of the 
committees in terms of skill sets, experience 
and diversity. The Committee also reviewed 
the functional committees and made 
recommendations to the Council for their  
re-appointments where appropriate. 

The Committee considers issues relating to the public 
accounting profession, especially matters affecting small 
and medium practices (SMPs); participates in dialogue 
sessions with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory 
Authority (ACRA) and other relevant authorities; and 
assists in related ad hoc assignments. 

The Committee had a fruitful year, with four meetings held 
on 21 June, 11 and 27 September and 29 November 2012, 
which saw substantive and engaging discussions over a 
number of issues and initiatives proposed by the Institute.

During the term, the Committee discussed and provided 
its detailed comments on ACRA’s Consultation Papers 
on the Review of the Accountants Act (Parts One and 
Two). These comments were approved by Council and 
submitted as part of the Institute’s feedback to ACRA.

The inaugural Young Professionals Advisory Committee 
(YPAC) was established in June 2012 with a view to 
contribute to the strategy, operations and initiatives of 
ICPAS from the perspectives of our young members 
who are 35 years and below. Drawing from a dynamic 
team of nine members from a cross-section of industries, 
educational backgrounds and roles, YPAC has provided 
valuable inputs to the ICPAS’ roadmap and given insight 

(iv) Recommended the implementation of a feedback 
process on Council performance as a whole 
together with a self-assessment by each individual 
council member as part of good governance.

(v) Recommended to the Council the appointment 
of members as ICPAS representatives to external 
bodies as and when required.

To facilitate the Institute’s efforts in rolling out relevant 
and targeted programmes to help its members, the 
Committee discussed and provided its practical 
comments on, and supported the launch of, the Institute’s 
initiatives and practice guides issued during the year.  
The key initiatives discussed are as follows:

•	 Quality	Assurance	Review	Programme
•	 ICPAS	Industry	Development	Roadmap
•	 ICPAS	Practice	Guides	on	SSQC1	–	Phase	1
•	 ICPAS	Practice	Guides	on	SSQC1	–	Phase	2

Representing the Institute, the Committee also participated 
in ACRA’s Six Monthly Dialogue Session with Professional 
Bodies held on 29 March and 31 October 2012.

on how ICPAS’ operations can increase its relevance to 
younger members over the past few months. A survey for 
young members mooted by YPAC has been broadened to 
become a members-wide survey that will be launched in 
early 2013. YPAC is planning new initiatives in 2013 that 
will appeal to our target demographic of members and the 
Committee will announce its plans in due course. 

yOUNg prOFEssIONaLs aDvIsOry COMMITTEE
Lim Kexin – Chairperson Tay Ai Li

Loh Yu Jun Chris – Dy Chairman Kelvin Teo

Meryl Joan Lee Yan Ci Shereen Farzana

Li Pei Wen Vivian Sim Tiao hui Emily

Ling Bee Yen

pUbLIC aCCOUNTINg praCTICE COMMITTEE
Frankie Chia Soo hien – Chairman Michael heng Yeow Meng Philip Siew Tin Gin

Raymond Chan Tuck Chee Eleanor Lee Kim Lin John Tan hon Chye

Michael Chin Sek Peng John Lim Geok Peng

Francis Chin Yoke Lan Lim Yeong Seng
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Dear MeMbers

On our journey to transform the Institute into a professional 
body with global membership, outlook and standing, in 
response to the Committee to Develop the Accountancy 
Sector’s (CDAS) recommendation, and to broaden the 
scope of its services to members, our financial performance 
for Financial Year (FY) 2012 was a year of continuing  
long-term investment.

In FY2012, the Group reported a total income of S$25.2 
million (FY2011: S$25.0 million) and a total expenditure of 
S$22.4 million (FY2011: S$20.7 million). This represented 
a 0.7% growth in income and an 8% increase in expenses. 

The growth in Group income can be attributed to the 
increase in membership subscriptions of S$1.5 million to 
S$5.3 million, a surge from the S$3.8 million in the previous 
year. Course revenue from ICPAS’ Continuing Professional 
Education (CPE) grew from S$2.8 million to S$3 million. 
The increase in income was tempered by the lower revenue 
from the education arm, lower member admissions in the 
subsidiaries and lower revenues from seminars and talks. 

During FY2012, the Institute strengthened its management 
team with the appointment of a new Chief Executive 
Officer, Chief Operating Officer and Executive Director 
for Technical Knowledge Centre and Quality Assurance. 
Member-centric departments such as the Technical Standards 
Development & Advisory, Quality Assurance and Industry 
Development departments were also expanded in the quest 
to provide increased value for members. In preparation for 
the Singapore Qualification Programme (Singapore QP), 
which will be launched in 2013, significant investments in 
the administrative team were also made.  These new staff 
members raised staff costs and recruitment expenses by 
S$1.7 million to S$11.6 million (FY2011: S$9.9 million). 
With SAA Global Education Centre Pte Ltd (SAA-GE) 
increasing its academic offerings, the move to a new, larger 
premise also raised rental expense during the year by S$0.4 
million. SAA-GE’s expansion into new programmes has 
also increased direct course expenses by S$0.3 million. The 
Members Development Fund initiative during the year 
raised expenses by another S$0.14 million. Other one-off 
expenses incurred during the year included the strategic 
planning consultation fee and the agent fees for the leasing 
out of 6 Raffles Quay, totalling S$0.15 million. The overall 

Note from the Treasurer



increase was tempered by the reversal of the accrual of 
S$1 million for the Accounting Sector Development Fund 
(ASDF) made in FY2011.

Overall, at the close of the financial year, the Group saw a 
decline of S$0.8 million in before-tax surplus as compared 
with 2011, ignoring the effects of impairment loss adjustments. 
Despite this decline, ICPAS’ financial position remained 
healthy as that of 2011 with cash reserves of S$16 million 
accumulated over the years. Of these reserves, S$8 million is 
maintained in current accounts to facilitate meeting of monthly 
expenditures as well as repayment of existing trade payables. 

The consolidated balance sheet of the Group reflects total 
assets of S$55.0 million as at 31 December 2012. This 
represents approximately a S$2.2 million or 4% increase from 
2011, while total liabilities decreased by approximately 6% 
over the same period to S$9.1 million from S$9.7 million. 
The decrease in liabilities arose mainly from the reversal 
of the accrual of S$1 million for the ASDF.

FY2012 was a year of flux, with changes both internally 
and externally. Changes to the management structure 

were necessary to move the Institute forward in meeting 
the need for greater member services. uncertainties 
surrounding the Singapore QP affected the intake of 
accounting programmes for SAA-GE as well as the launch 
of the Professional Examination programme undertaken 
by the Institute. With these uncertainties now removed, 
the Institute will be able to focus its efforts on increasing 
revenue streams to facilitate the fulfilment of its initiatives. 
Despite this, continual diligence in maintaining appropriate 
costs levels in the face of increasing cost pressures and 
inflation remains of great importance.

Lastly, I thank our Members, the Council, the Boards of 
Directors and the Group for their active and dedicated 
support.

Ho Tuck Chuen
Treasurer
Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore
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STATEMENT BY COUNCIL

On behalf of the Council of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore (the “Institute”), we, Ernest Kan and 
Ho Tuck Chuen, being the President and Treasurer respectively, do hereby state that in our opinion, the consolidated financial 
statements of the Group and financial statements of the Institute set out on pages 63 to 91 are properly drawn up in accordance 
with the Societies Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the Group and the Institute as at 31 December 2012 and of its results, changes in accumulated fund and miscellaneous fund 
and cash flows of the Group and the Institute for the financial year ended on that date.

Ernest Kan       Ho Tuck Chuen
President         Treasurer

Date: 26 February 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO MEMbERS OF THE InSTITuTE OF CERTIFIED PublIC ACCOunTAnTS OF SInGAPORE

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore 
(the “Institute”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) set out on pages 63 to 91, which comprise the balance 
sheets of the Group and the Institute as at 31 December 2012, the statements of comprehensive income, statements of 
changes in the accumulated fund and miscellaneous fund and statements of cash flows of the Group and the Institute 
for the financial year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

The Council’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
the Societies Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as Council determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the financial statements of the Institute are 
properly drawn up in accordance with the Societies Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to present 
fairly, in all material respects, the state of affairs of the Group and the Institute at 31 December 2012 and the results, 
changes in accumulated fund and miscellaneous fund and cash flows of the Group and the Institute for the year ended 
on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the regulations enacted under the Societies Act to be kept 
by the Institute have been properly kept in accordance with those regulations.

Baker Tilly TFW LLP
Public Accountants and
Certified Public Accountants
Singapore

Date: 26 February 2013



STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

 Group  Institute
Note 2012 2011 2012 2011

$ $ $ $

Secretariat

Income for the year
Members’ annual and admission fees 3 5,325,238 3,774,071 5,325,238 3,774,071
Other income 5 4,334,211 5,414,028 2,770,408 3,590,917

Total income 9,659,449 9,188,099 8,095,646 7,364,988

Less expenditure
Finance costs – (452) – (452)

Operating expenses (excluding  
impairment) (10,881,064) (11,716,819) (10,248,402) (11,083,089)

Write-back of impairment loss of  
freehold land and building 10, 11 1,833,085 2,603,092 1,833,085 2,603,092

Total operating expenses (9,047,979) (9,113,727) (8,415,317) (8,479,997)

Total expenditure (9,047,979) (9,114,179) (8,415,317) (8,480,449)

Surplus/(deficit) before tax 611,470 73,920 (319,671) (1,115,461)

Training Division

Income for the year
Income from training and other courses 4 17,402,650 18,179,273 7,097,428 7,142,978
Other income 5 191,032 170,346 191,032 170,346

Total income 17,593,682 18,349,619 7,288,460 7,313,324

Less expenditure
Finance costs – (3,072) – (3,072)
Operating expenses (15,484,271) (14,168,986) (4,729,971) (4,388,358)

Total expenditure (15,484,271) (14,172,058) (4,729,971) (4,391,430)

Surplus before tax 2,109,411 4,177,561 2,558,489 2,921,894
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONT’D)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

 Group  Institute
Note 2012 2011 2012 2011

$ $ $ $

Combined

Income for the year
Members’ annual and admission fees 3 5,325,238 3,774,071 5,325,238 3,774,071
Income from training and other courses 4 17,402,650 18,179,273 7,097,428 7,142,978
Other income 5 2,439,504 3,035,083 2,961,440 3,761,263

Total income 25,167,392 24,988,427 15,384,106 14,678,312

Less expenditure
Finance costs 6 – (3,524) – (3,524)

Operating expenses (excluding impairment) (24,279,596) (23,336,514) (14,978,373) (15,471,447)
Write-back of impairment loss of freehold 

land and building 10, 11 1,833,085 2,603,092 1,833,085 2,603,092

Total operating expenses (22,446,511) (20,733,422) (13,145,288) (12,868,355)

Total expenditure (22,446,511) (20,736,946) (13,145,288) (12,871,879)

Surplus from operating activities 2,720,881 4,251,481 2,238,818 1,806,433
Share of profits of associates (net of tax) 5,916 7,210 – –

Surplus before tax 2,726,797 4,258,691 2,238,818 1,806,433
Income tax credit 7 10,945 150,074 31,364 214,959

Surplus for the year 9 2,737,742 4,408,765 2,270,182 2,021,392

Surplus in miscellaneous fund 16,627 21,509 16,627 21,509

Total comprehensive income for the year 2,754,369 4,430,274 2,286,809 2,042,901

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



BALANCE SHEETS
At 31 December 2012

 Group  Institute
Note 2012 2011 2012 2011

$ $ $ $

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 22,809,392 33,623,810 759,248 14,091,031
Investment properties 11 13,206,781 – 34,019,183 19,111,007
Investment in subsidiaries 12 – – 300,003 300,003
Investment in associates 13 103,156 95,425 – –
Deferred tax assets 14 194,000 142,000 194,000 142,000
Intangible assets 15 739,274 491,580 428,701 133,914

37,052,603 34,352,815 35,701,135 33,777,955

Current assets
Inventories 23,795 – 23,795 –
Trade and other receivables 16 1,525,578 1,313,461 1,575,627 1,785,904
Cash and cash equivalents 17 16,349,459 17,091,376 7,605,270 7,433,080

17,898,832 18,404,837 9,204,692 9,218,984

Total assets 54,951,435 52,757,652 44,905,827 42,996,939

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 14 29,373 23,000 – –
Provisions 18 175,800 – – –

205,173 23,000 – –

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 3,861,418 4,769,191 2,828,511 3,578,869
Course fees received in advance 3,846,912 3,806,801 299,583 250,341
Subscription fees received in advance 1,151,738 950,123 1,150,718 827,523
Current tax payable 33,003 109,715 – –

8,893,071 9,635,830 4,278,812 4,656,733

Total liabilities 9,098,244 9,658,830 4,278,812 4,656,733

Net assets 45,853,191 43,098,822 40,627,015 38,340,206

Represented by
Accumulated fund 45,782,257 43,044,515 40,556,081 38,285,899
Miscellaneous fund 20 70,934 54,307 70,934 54,307

45,853,191 43,098,822 40,627,015 38,340,206

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Accumulated
fund

Miscellaneous
fund Total

$ $ $

Group

balance at 1 January 2011 38,635,750 32,798 38,668,548

Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year 4,408,765 21,509 4,430,274

balance at 31 December 2011 43,044,515 54,307 43,098,822

Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year 2,737,742 16,627 2,754,369

Balance at 31 December 2012 45,782,257 70,934 45,853,191

Institute

balance at 1 January 2011 36,264,507 32,798 36,297,305

Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year 2,021,392 21,509 2,042,901

balance at 31 December 2011 38,285,899 54,307 38,340,206

Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year 2,270,182 16,627 2,286,809

Balance at 31 December 2012 40,556,081 70,934 40,627,015

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED FUND  
AND MISCELLANEOUS FUND  
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



 Group  Institute
2012 2011 2012 2011

$ $ $ $

Cash flows from operating activities
Surplus before tax 2,726,797 4,258,691 2,238,818 1,806,433

Adjustments for:
Depreciation, write-back of impairment loss and 

amortisation of property, plant and equipment, 
investment properties and intangible assets (627,385) (1,519,219) (1,017,688) (1,704,231)

Gain on strike-off of an associate (1,815) – – –
Interest expense on finance leases – 3,524 – 3,524
Interest income (33,644) (32,832) (23,744) (21,922)
Property, plant and equipment written off 95,896 3,320 95,896 820
Share of profits of associates (5,916) (7,210) – –

Operating surplus before working capital changes 2,153,933 2,706,274 1,293,282 84,624

Inventories (23,795) 12,921 (23,795) 12,921
Receivables (213,834) 344,875 213,225 (262,881)
Payables (907,773) 1,694,597 (750,358) 420,799
Course fees received in advance 40,111 (269,077) 49,242 55,718
Subscription fees received in advance 201,615 52,493 323,195 58,518
Miscellaneous fund 16,627 21,509 16,627 21,509

Cash generated from operations 1,266,884 4,563,592 1,121,418 391,208
Income tax paid (111,394) (490,852) (20,636) (280,298)

Net cash from operating activities 1,155,490 4,072,740 1,100,782 110,910

Cash flows from investing activities
Fixed deposit pledged (53) (67) – –
Interest received 35,361 20,087 20,796 21,922
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and 

equipment – 4,534 – 4,534
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,559,258) (259,052) (610,703) (163,228)
Purchase of computer software (373,510) (495,690) (338,685) (129,300)

Net cash used in investing activities (1,897,460) (730,188) (928,592) (266,072)

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid on finance leases – (3,524) – (3,524)
Repayment of finance lease liabilities – (99,436) – (99,436)

Net cash used in financing activities – (102,960) – (102,960)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash 
equivalents (741,970) 3,239,592 172,190 (258,122)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 17,076,309 13,836,717 7,433,080 7,691,202

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 
(Note 17) 16,334,339 17,076,309 7,605,270 7,433,080

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Moving with the Times

67Annual Report 2012/2013



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements.

1 Corporate information

  The Institute (uEn no. T04SS0109E) is the national organisation of the accountancy profession in Singapore. It 
was established in June 1963 as the Singapore Society of Accountants (SSA) under the SSA Ordinance 1963, then 
reconstituted and renamed the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore (ICPAS) on 11 February 
1989 under the Accountants Act 1987. As of 1 April 2004, ICPAS is reconstituted as a society under the Societies 
Act. The restructuring is primarily a change of form for the Institute as ICPAS continues to be the national body 
for the accountancy profession in Singapore and its functions remain unchanged. The registered office of the 
Institute is located at 20 Aljunied Road, #06-02 CPA House, Singapore 389805.

  The principal activities of the Institute are those of administering the Institute’s membership, catering for the 
training and professional development of its members. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are disclosed in 
note 12.

  The consolidated financial statements relate to the Institute and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) and the 
Group’s interests in associates.

2 Significant accounting policies

 a) Basis of preparation

   The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the Societies Act and Singapore 
Financial Reporting Standards (FRS). 

   The financial statements, which are presented in Singapore dollars (“$”), have been prepared on the historical 
cost basis except as disclosed in the accounting policies below. 

   The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Group and the Institute and are consistent 
with those used in the previous financial year.

   The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income or expenditure during the financial 
year. Although these estimates are based on the Council’s best knowledge of current events and actions and 
historical experiences and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, 
actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement 
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are 
disclosed in note 2(s).

   In the current financial year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised FRS and Interpretations of FRS 
(“InT FRS”) that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current financial year. The adoption of 
these new/revised FRS and InT FRS did not have any material effect on the financial statements.

   new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations that have been issued at the balance sheet date 
but are not yet effective for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 have not been applied in preparing 
these financial statements. none of these are expected to have a significant effect on the consolidated 
financial statements of the Group and financial statements of the Institute.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

2 Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

 b) Consolidation

  Subsidiaries

   A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies 
so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are included in the 
consolidated financial statements from the date control commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-
group transactions and balances are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

  Associates

   Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over their financial 
and operating policies. The Group’s investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method. 
The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the profit or loss of the associates from 
the date that significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases. When the 
Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate, the carrying amount of that interest (including any 
long-term investments) is reduced to zero and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the 
extent that the Group has an obligation or has made payments on behalf of the associate.

  Accounting for subsidiaries and associates by the Institute

   In the Institute’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries and associates are stated at cost 
less impairment losses.

 c) Functional and foreign currencies

  Functional currency

   Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency that best reflects the 
economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to the Institute and its subsidiaries 
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars (“$”), 
which is the functional currency of the Institute and its subsidiaries.

  Foreign currencies

   Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate in 
effect at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the 
balance sheet date are translated into the functional currency at the rates ruling at that date. All exchange 
differences are taken to income or expenditure.

 d) Inventories

   Inventories, comprising commemorative gold coins, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

2 Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

 e) Property, plant and equipment 

   Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

   Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and costs of bringing the 
asset to working condition for its intended use. Dismantlement, removal or restoration costs are included 
as part of the cost of asset if the obligation for dismantlement, removal or restoration costs is incurred as 
a consequence of acquiring or using the asset.  Expenditure for additions, improvements and renewals are 
capitalised and expenditure for maintenance and repairs are charged to expenditure. The cost of replacing 
part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is 
probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can 
be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised 
in income or expenditure as incurred.

   An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is 
included in income or expenditure in the year the asset is derecognised.

   Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is calculated on the 
straight-line basis to write off the cost less residual value of the assets over their estimated useful lives as 
follows:

Freehold buildings 50 years
Furniture and office equipment 3 to 10 years
Computers 3 to 4 years
Renovation 3 to 5 years

   Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each 
financial year-end. The effects of any revision are recognised in income or expenditure when the changes 
arise.

 f ) Investment properties

Investment properties, comprise freehold building of the Group and freehold land and freehold buildings 
of the Institute, that are leased out to earn rental. Investment properties are initially recognised at cost and 
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation 
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the depreciable amounts over the estimated useful 
life of 50 years. 

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. When transfer is made 
between investment property and owner-occupied property, its carrying amount (cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment) at the date of transfer becomes its carrying amount for subsequent accounting.

On disposal of investment property, the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount 
is recognised in income or expenditure.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

2 Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

 g) Intangible assets

   Acquired intellectual property is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment 
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of the intellectual 
property over their estimated useful lives of 3 years.

   Computer software is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of the computer software over 
their estimated useful lives of 5 years.

 h) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there 
is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. 

An impairment loss is recognised in expenditure if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating 
unit exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that 
generates cash flows that largely are independent from other assets and groups.  

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and 
its value in use.  In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present 
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating unit.

Impairment losses recognised in prior years are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that 
the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the 
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that 
the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation, if no impairment loss has been recognised.  Reversal of impairment loss is recorded in income 
or expenditure. After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the 
asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

 i) Financial assets

  i) Classification

    The Group classifies its financial assets according to the purpose for which the assets were acquired. 
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates 
this designation at every reporting date. The Group’s only financial assets are loans and receivables.

   Loans and receivables

    loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that 
are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except those maturing later 
than 12 months after the balance sheet date which are classified as non-current assets. loans and 
receivables are presented as “trade and other receivables” (excluding prepayments) and “cash and cash 
equivalents” on the balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

2 Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

 i) Financial assets (cont’d)

  ii) Recognition and derecognition

    Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date – the date on which the 
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to 
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group 
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. On disposal of a financial asset, 
the difference between the net sale proceeds and its carrying amount is recognised in income or 
expenditure. Any amount in the fair value reserve relating to that asset is also transferred to income or 
expenditure.

  iii) Initial measurement

   loans and receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs.

  iv) Subsequent measurement

    loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less impairment.

   Interest income on financial assets is recognised separately as income.

  v) Impairment

    The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset 
or a group of financial assets is impaired.

   Loans and receivables

Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or 
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the 
receivable is impaired.

The carrying amount of these assets is reduced through the use of an impairment loss recognised in 
income or expenditure. The impairment loss is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount 
and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. 
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are recognised against the same line item in 
income or expenditure.

If in subsequent periods, the impairment loss decreases, and the decrease can be related objectively to 
an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment 
loss is reversed through income or expenditure to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does 
not exceed its amortised cost at the reversed date.

 j) Financial liabilities

   Financial liabilities include trade and other payables. Financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet 
when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. 
Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value of consideration received less directly attributable 
transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

   Gains and losses are recognised in income or expenditure when the liabilities are derecognised as well as 
through the amortisation process. The liabilities are derecognised when the obligation under the liability is 
discharged or cancelled or expired.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

2 Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

 k) Provisions

   Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) where, as a result 
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of time 
value of money is material, the amount of the provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to 
be required to settle the obligation.

 l) Leases

  Finance leases

   leases of assets in which the Group assumes substantially the risks and rewards of ownership are classified 
as finance leases. Property, plant and equipment acquired through finance leases are capitalised at the 
inception of the lease at the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. 
Subsequent to the initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy 
applicable to that asset. lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the 
lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance 
charges are charged to income or expenditure.

  Operating leases

  Lessee

   leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are 
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the 
lessor) are taken to income or expenditure on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

   When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made 
to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination takes place.

  Lessor

   leases where the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are classified 
as operating leases. Rental income (net of any incentives given to lessees) is recognised on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term.

 m) Cash and cash equivalents

   Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk 
of changes in value.

 n) Revenue recognition

   Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and 
the revenue can be reliably measured.

  Members’ annual and admission fees are recognised when due.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

2 Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

 n) Revenue recognition (cont’d)

   Course fees (from continuing professional education and training) are recognised when the services are 
rendered.

   Interest income is recognised as the interest accrues based on effective interest method.

  Rental income from operating leases are recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

   Sundry income, includes sale of Members’ Handbooks, which are recognised when the goods sold are 
delivered and subvention fees, which are recognised when received for the current financial year.

 o) Government grants

   Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will 
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair 
value is recognised as deferred capital grant on the balance sheet and is amortised to income or expenditure 
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

   When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised in income or expenditure over the period 
necessary to match them on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate.

 p) Employee benefits

  Defined contribution plans

   As required by law, the Group makes contributions to the state pension scheme, the Central Provident Fund 
(CPF) Scheme which is a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to CPF are recognised as 
expense in the period in which the related service is performed.

  Employee leave entitlement

   Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. The estimated liability 
for leave is recognised for services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date. 

 q) Income tax

Income tax for the financial year comprises current and deferred tax.  Income tax is recognised in income 
or expenditure except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is 
recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or 
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous 
years.

Deferred tax is recognised, using the balance sheet method, providing for all temporary differences at the 
balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial 
statements. Deferred tax is not recognised for the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither 
accounting nor taxable profit.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

2 Significant accounting policies (cont’d)

 q) Income tax (cont’d)

   Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when 
they reverse, based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 
balance sheet date.

   A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet 
date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

 r) Borrowing costs

   All borrowing costs that are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds 
are recognised as expense using the effective interest method in the period in which they are incurred 
except for borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a 
qualifying asset that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale 
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset until all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset 
for its intended use or sale are substantially completed.  

 s) Significant accounting estimates and judgements

  i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

   Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and investment properties

The cost of property, plant and equipment and investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line 
basis over their respective useful lives. Management estimates the useful lives of these property, plant 
and equipment and investment properties to be within 3 to 50 years. The carrying amount of the 
Group and Institute’s property, plant and equipment and investment properties as at 31 December 
2012 and the annual depreciation charge for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 are disclosed 
in notes 10 and 11. Changes in the expected level of usage and technological developments could 
impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets. Therefore, future depreciation 
charges could be revised and impact the results in future years. 

  ii) Critical judgements made in applying accounting policies

    There are no significant judgements made in applying accounting policies in the preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements of the Group and financial statements of the Institute.

3 Members’ annual and admission fees

 Group  Institute
2012 2011 2012 2011

$ $ $ $

Members’ annual fees 4,803,538 3,312,741 4,803,538 3,312,741
Members’ admission fees 521,700 461,330 521,700 461,330

5,325,238 3,774,071 5,325,238 3,774,071
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

4 Income from training and other courses

 Group  Institute
2012 2011 2012 2011

$ $ $ $

Income from Continuing Professional 
Education 3,001,743 2,824,093 3,001,743 2,824,093

Income from other training courses 14,400,907 15,355,180 4,095,685 4,318,885

17,402,650 18,179,273 7,097,428 7,142,978

5 Other income

 Group  Institute
2012 2011 2012 2011

$ $ $ $

Secretariat

Government grants 19,800 – 3,718 –
Registration and subscription fees 992,271 1,250,499 – –
Interest income from bank deposits and  

bank balances 33,644 32,832 23,744 21,922
Management fee charged to subsidiaries 

and associates 791,949 948,031 791,949 948,031
Practice Monitoring income 286,731 304,292 286,731 304,292
Seminar and talk fees 239,514 631,560 163,604 553,195
Rental income 1,281,635 1,584,641 1,117,279 1,399,758
Sundry income 688,667 662,173 383,383 363,719

4,334,211 5,414,028 2,770,408 3,590,917

Training Division

Seminar and talk fees 92,464 51,715 92,464 51,715
Rental income 1,170 – 1,170 –
Sundry income 97,398 118,631 97,398 118,631

191,032 170,346 191,032 170,346

Sub-total 4,525,243 5,584,374 2,961,440 3,761,263
Elimination (2,085,739) (2,549,291) – –

Combined 2,439,504 3,035,083 2,961,440 3,761,263



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

6 Finance costs 

 Group  Institute
2012 2011 2012 2011

$ $ $ $

Interest expense on finance leases – 3,524 – 3,524

7 Income tax credit

Income tax credit attributable to results is made up of:

 Group  Institute
2012 2011 2012 2011

$ $ $ $

Current income tax 30,983 109,715 – –
Deferred tax (112,627) (84,285) (119,000) (107,285)

(81,644) 25,430 (119,000) (107,285)
under/(over) provision of income tax  

in prior years 3,699 (175,504) 20,636 (107,674)
Over recognition of deferred tax assets 

in prior years 67,000 – 67,000 –

(10,945) (150,074) (31,364) (214,959)

The income tax credit on the results of the financial year varies from the amount of income tax determined by 
applying the Singapore statutory rate of income tax to surplus before tax due to the following factors:

 Group  Institute
2012 2011 2012 2011

$ $ $ $

Surplus before tax 2,726,797 4,258,691 2,238,818 1,806,433

Tax calculated at a tax rate of 17% 463,555 723,977 380,599 307,094
Singapore statutory stepped income 

exemption (31,994) (67,000) – –
Income not subject to tax (484,358) (442,532) (481,624) (442,528)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 108,766 102,053 79,994 87,297
Effect of tax incentive* (132,963) (287,411) (97,734) (76,647)
utilisation of deferred tax assets previously 

not recognised (4,380) (25,000) – –
under/(over) provision of income tax in 

prior years 3,699 (175,504) 20,636 (107,674)
Over recognition of deferred tax assets 

in prior years 67,000 – 67,000 –
Others (270) 21,343 (235) 17,499

(10,945) (150,074) (31,364) (214,959)

* Tax incentive for the Group and the Institute arose from the Productivity and Innovation Credit scheme.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

8 Staff costs

 Group  Institute
2012 2011 2012 2011

$ $ $ $

Salaries and bonuses 10,175,122 8,727,455 7,223,596 5,874,152
Contributions to CPF 1,199,550 1,004,339 832,654 670,492
Other employee benefit expenses 239,683 140,143 157,058 86,406

11,614,355 9,871,937 8,213,308 6,631,050

9 Surplus for the year

This is arrived at after charging/(crediting) the following:

 Group  Institute
2012 2011 2012 2011

$ $ $ $

Depreciation of property, plant 
and equipment (note 10) 991,670 1,062,529 551,595 754,551

Depreciation of investment  
properties (note 11) 88,214 – 219,904 131,690

Write-back of impairment loss 
of freehold land and building 
(notes 10 and 11) (1,833,085) (2,603,092) (1,833,085) (2,603,092)

Amortisation of intangible assets  
(note 15) 125,816 21,344 43,898 12,620

bad debts written off 194,955 96,110 155,926 94,574
Direct costs of providing training 

and other courses 4,635,753 4,141,928 1,536,500 1,322,129
Foreign currency exchange loss – 65 – 65
Gain on strike-off of an  

associate 1,815 – – –
Property, plant and equipment 

written off 95,896 3,320 95,896 820
Rental expenses 1,405,644 991,082 902,256 799,278
(Write-back of)/accrual for  

contribution to the Accountancy 
Sector Development Fund (1,000,000) 1,000,000 (1,000,000) 1,000,000

Staff costs (note 8) 11,614,355 9,871,937 8,213,308 6,631,050



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

10 Property, plant and equipment

 Group

Freehold
land

Freehold
buildings

Furniture
and office

equipment Computers Renovation Total
$ $ $ $ $ $

Cost
balance at 1 January 2011 20,176,000 21,706,764 1,768,102 1,696,627 1,193,655 46,541,148
Additions – – 51,573 207,479 – 259,052
Disposals – – (22,596) – – (22,596)
Written off – – (10,665) (40,592) – (51,257)

balance at  
31 December 2011 20,176,000 21,706,764 1,786,414 1,863,514 1,193,655 46,726,347

Additions – – 901,842 273,589 559,627 1,735,058
Reclassified to investment  

properties (note 11) – (15,122,262) – – – (15,122,262)
Written off – – (633,929) (33,266) (270,565) (937,760)

balance at  
31 December 2012 20,176,000 6,584,502 2,054,327 2,103,837 1,482,717 32,401,383

Accumulated depreciation 
and impairment

balance at 1 January 2011 7,397,595 4,033,892 1,153,620 1,349,630 774,362 14,709,099
Depreciation charge  

for the year (note 9) – 434,135 236,378 225,843 166,173 1,062,529
Disposals – – (18,062) – – (18,062)
Written off – – (8,165) (39,772) – (47,937)
Write-back of 

impairment loss (1,591,760) (1,011,332) – – – (2,603,092)

balance at  
31 December 2011 5,805,835 3,456,695 1,363,771 1,535,701 940,535 13,102,537

Depreciation charge  
for the year (note 9) – 345,922 233,214 238,180 174,354 991,670

Reclassified to investment  
properties (note 11) – (1,827,267) – – – (1,827,267)

Written off – – (554,771) (33,266) (253,827) (841,864)
Write-back of  

impairment loss (1,833,085) – – – – (1,833,085)

balance at  
31 December 2012 3,972,750 1,975,350 1,042,214 1,740,615 861,062 9,591,991

Carrying amount
balance at  

31 December 2011 14,370,165 18,250,069 422,643 327,813 253,120 33,623,810

balance at  
31 December 2012 16,203,250 4,609,152 1,012,113 363,222 621,655 22,809,392

(a)  During the financial year, #23-00, 6 Raffles Quay has been reclassified to investment property as it is held to 
be leased out to a third party. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

10 Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

 Group (cont’d)

(b)  At the balance sheet date, the market value of the property, CPA house was valued at $23,850,000 (2011: 
$21,589,000) and #23-00, 6 Raffles Quay was valued at $26,330,000 (2011: $26,330,000). The valuations were 
determined by independent professional valuer based on a desktop update of valuation using the Market 
Data Approach at the balance sheet date.

  As the recoverable amount of the CPA House in current year is higher than its carrying amount, a write-back 
of impairment loss of $1,833,085 (2011: $2,603,092) is made by the Group. 

(c)  The CPA House is classified as an investment property in the Institute’s balance sheet as it is substantially 
leased out to its wholly-owned subsidiary, SAA Global Education Centre Pte ltd. However in the Group’s 
consolidated balance sheet, this is classified as property, plant and equipment.

(d)  Additions to renovation during the year include provision for dismantlement, removal and restoration costs 
of $175,800 (2011: $nil). The cash outflow on acquisition of property, plant and equipment amounted to 
$1,559,258 (2011: $259,052).

 Institute

Freehold
buildings

Furniture 
and office

equipment Computers Renovation Total
$ $ $ $ $

Cost
balance at 1 January 2011 15,122,262 1,199,817 1,265,165 667,497 18,254,741
Additions – 7,059 156,170 – 163,229
Disposals – (22,596) – – (22,596)
Written off – (3,779) (40,592) – (44,371)

balance at 31 December 2011 15,122,262 1,180,501 1,380,743 667,497 18,351,003
Additions – 266,761 211,639 132,303 610,703
Reclassified to investment properties 

(note 11) (15,122,262) – – – (15,122,262)
Written off – (633,413) (33,266) (270,565) (937,244)

balance at 31 December 2012 – 813,849 1,559,116 529,235 2,902,200

Accumulated depreciation
balance at 1 January 2011 1,310,590 761,182 968,199 527,063 3,567,034
Depreciation charge for the year 

(note 9) 302,445 182,423 190,305 79,378 754,551
Disposals – (18,062) – – (18,062)
Written off – (3,779) (39,772) – (43,551)

balance at 31 December 2011 1,613,035 921,764 1,118,732 606,441 4,259,972
Depreciation charge for the year 

(note 9) 214,232 110,967 193,576 32,820 551,595
Reclassified to investment properties 

(note 11) (1,827,267) – – – (1,827,267)
Written off – (554,256) (33,266) (253,826) (841,348)

balance at 31 December 2012 – 478,475 1,279,042 385,435 2,142,952

Carrying amount
balance at 31 December 2011 13,509,227 258,737 262,011 61,056 14,091,031

balance at 31 December 2012 – 335,374 280,074 143,800 759,248

During the year, #23-00, 6 Raffles Quay has been reclassified to investment property as it is held to be leased out 
to a third party.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

10 Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

 Group and Institute

In accordance with the Constitution of the Institute, the freehold land and freehold buildings are held by Institute 
of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore Pte ltd in trust for the Institute.

Location
Area

(Sq feet) Tenure

i) CPA House
20 Aljunied Road
Singapore 389805
Consisting of 5 floors
(units #01-01, #01-03, #01-04, #01-05, #01-06, #02-01, #02-02, 
#04-01, #04-02, #05-01, #05-02, #06-01 and #06-02) 29,917 Freehold

ii) 6 Raffles Quay
#23-00
Singapore 048580 10,129 Freehold

 

11 Investment properties

 Group  Institute
2012 2011 2012 2011

$ $ $ $

Cost
At beginning of year – – 26,760,502 26,760,502
Reclassified from property, plant 

and equipment (note 10) 15,122,262 – 15,122,262 –

At end of year 15,122,262 – 41,882,764 26,760,502

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At beginning of year – – 7,649,495 10,120,897
Reclassified from property, plant  

and equipment (note 10) 1,827,267 – 1,827,267 –
Depreciation charge (note 9) 88,214 – 219,904 131,690
Write-back of impairment loss (note 9) – – (1,833,085) (2,603,092)

At end of year 1,915,481 – 7,863,581 7,649,495

Carrying amount 13,206,781 – 34,019,183 19,111,007

 Group and Institute

(a)  During the financial year, #23-00, 6 Raffles Quay has been reclassified from property, plant and equipment 
to investment property as it is held to be leased out to a third party. 

(b)  At the balance sheet date, the market value of the property, CPA house was valued at $23,850,000 (2011: 
$21,589,000) and #23-00, 6 Raffles Quay was valued at $26,330,000 (2011: $26,330,000). The valuations were 
determined by independent professional valuer based on a desktop update of valuation using the Market 
Data Approach at the balance sheet date.

  As the recoverable amount of CPA House in current year is higher than its carrying amount, a write-back of 
impairment loss of $1,833,085 (2011: $2,603,092) is made by the Institute.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

11 Investment properties (cont’d)

 Group and Institute (cont’d)

(c) The following amounts are recognised in income and expenditure:

 Group  Institute
2012 2011 2012 2011

$ $ $ $

Rental income – – 1,071,583 1,350,078
Direct operating expenses arising from 

investment properties that generated  
rental income – – (332,745) (210,401)

Direct operating expenses arising from 
investment properties that did not  
generate rental income (110,977) – (110,977) –

Write-back of impairment loss – – 1,833,085 2,603,092
Depreciation charge (88,214) – (219,904) (131,690)

 Institute

Since 2010, the Institute has leased out its freehold property, at CPA House to its subsidiary. Consequently, the 
Institute has reclassified its freehold properties from property, plant and equipment to investment property.

12 Subsidiaries and intra-group transactions

a) Investment in subsidiaries

 Institute
2012 2011

$ $

Unquoted equity shares, at cost
At beginning and end of year 300,003 300,003
 

b) Details of subsidiaries are as follows:

Country of Principal
Effective interest 

held by the Group
Name of subsidiaries incorporation activities 2012 2011

% %

Association of Taxation 
Technicians (S) limited*#

Singapore To administer the structured 
training program and to set 
and to manage the syllabus and 
examination which will lead to 
the Diploma in Taxation

100 100



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

12 Subsidiaries and intra-group transactions (cont’d)

b) Details of subsidiaries are as follows: (cont’d)

Country of Principal
Effective interest 

held by the Group
Name of subsidiaries incorporation activities 2012 2011

% %

Certified Accounting 
Technicians (Singapore) 
ltd*#

Singapore To support and advance the 
status and interests of Certified 
Accounting Technicians

100 100

Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants of Singapore 
Pte ltd#

Singapore To undertake and perform the 
office and duties of trustee of 
and for the ICPAS in accordance 
with the constitution of the 
ICPAS

100 100

SAA Global Education 
Centre Pte. ltd.#

Singapore Operating a private education 
centre which offers higher 
education programmes

100 100

Singapore Institute 
of Accredited Tax 
Professionals limited*

Singapore Accreditation body for tax 
professionals

100 100

 *  There is no cost of investment as the subsidiaries are companies limited by guarantee for every member 
of the company undertakes to contribute to meet the debts and liabilities of these subsidiaries in the 
event of its liquidation to an amount not exceeding $10 for each member. 

 #  These subsidiaries are considered to be wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Institute as the members of 
the subsidiaries are trustees of the Institute and the Council of the Institute has direct control over 
these subsidiaries.

c) Intra-group transactions

During the financial year, the Institute has the following significant transactions with the subsidiaries on 
terms agreed between the parties:

 Institute
2012 2011

$ $

Subscription of journals 26,834 27,196
Management fee income 782,449 941,231
Rental income 1,117,279 1,398,758
Rental expenses 156,448 172,832
Reimbursement of expenses 2,729 3,074
Payment made on behalf by the Institute – 6,200
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

13 Investment in associates

 Group  Institute
2012 2011 2012 2011

$ $ $ $

Investment in associates 103,156 95,425 –* –*

 Group
2012 2011

$ $

Share of profits
At beginning of year 95,425 88,215
Share of profits 7,731 7,210

At end of year 103,156 95,425

Details of associates are as follows:

Country of Principal
Effective interest 

held by the Group
Name of associates incorporation activities 2012 2011

% %

Insolvency Practitioners 
Association of Singapore limited*

Singapore Professional body for 
insolvency practitioners

50 50

Singapore Institute of 
Taxation limited*#

Singapore Dormant – 33

*  There is no cost of investment as the associates are companies limited by guarantee whereby every member 
of the company undertakes to contribute to meet the debts and liabilities of the company in the event of its 
liquidation to an amount not exceeding $10 for each member.

# During the financial year, the associate filed for a strike off with the authorities.

The summarised financial information of the associates not adjusted for the proportion of ownership interest held 
by the Group is as follows:

2012 2011
$ $

Assets and liabilities
Current assets 219,821 213,742

Current liabilities 13,508 24,709

Results
Revenue 28,776 37,108

Profit after taxation 11,831 10,361



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

13 Investment in associates (cont’d)

During the financial year, the Institute has the following transaction with an associate on the terms agreed between 
the parties:

 Group & Institute
2012 2011

$ $

Management fee income 9,500 6,800
Share of conference income 818 10,881

14 Deferred tax 

2012 2011
$ $

Group

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) comprises tax effect  
of temporary differences arising from:

Accelerated tax depreciation (152,648) (149,811)
Provisions and accruals 313,819 243,882
Others 3,456 24,929

164,627 119,000

Representing:
Non-current
Deferred tax assets 194,000 142,000
Deferred tax liabilities (29,373) (23,000)

164,627 119,000

2012 2011
$ $

Institute

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) comprises tax effect 
of temporary differences arising from:

Accelerated tax depreciation (80,238) (56,222)
Provisions and accruals 273,985 172,878
Others 253 25,344

194,000 142,000

Representing:
Non-current
Deferred tax assets 194,000 142,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

15 Intangible assets

 Group
Intellectual

property
Computer

software Total
$ $ $

Cost
balance at 1 January 2011 19,388 – 19,388
Additions – 495,690 495,690

balance at 31 December 2011 19,388 495,690 515,078
Additions – 373,510 373,510

balance at 31 December 2012 19,388 869,200 888,588

Accumulated amortisation
balance at 1 January 2011 2,154 – 2,154
Amortisation charge for the year (note 9) 6,463 14,881 21,344

balance at 31 December 2011 8,617 14,881 23,498
Amortisation charge for the year (note 9) 6,463 119,353 125,816

balance at 31 December 2012 15,080 134,234 149,314

Carrying amount
balance at 31 December 2011 10,771 480,809 491,580

balance at 31 December 2012 4,308 734,966 739,274

 Institute
Intellectual

property
Computer

software Total
$ $ $

Cost
balance at 1 January 2011 19,388 – 19,388
Additions – 129,300 129,300

balance at 31 December 2011 19,388 129,300 148,688
Additions – 338,685 338,685

balance at 31 December 2012 19,388 467,985 487,373

Accumulated amortisation
balance at 1 January 2011 2,154 – 2,154
Amortisation charge for the year (note 9) 6,463 6,157 12,620

balance at 31 December 2011 8,617 6,157 14,774
Amortisation charge for the year (note 9) 6,463 37,435 43,898

balance at 31 December 2012 15,080 43,592 58,672

Carrying amount
balance at 31 December 2011 10,771 123,143 133,914

balance at 31 December 2012 4,308 424,393 428,701



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

15 Intangible assets (cont’d)

 Institute (cont’d)

Included in computer software of the Group and the Institute is software-in-progress amounting to $244,260 
(2011: $nil).

16 Trade and other receivables

 Group  Institute
2012 2011 2012 2011

$ $ $ $

Trade receivables 467,605 605,000 444,436 449,944
Amounts due from (trade)
- subsidiaries – – 352,683 453,472
- associate 10,165 – 10,165 –
Amount due from subsidiary 

(non-trade) – – 200,000 250,000
Accrued practice review fee receivable 107,710 185,040 107,710 185,040
Deposits 671,540 189,406 302,450 188,006
Interest receivables 14,241 15,958 12,528 9,580
Prepayments 231,279 308,581 126,234 240,656
Others 23,038 9,476 19,421 9,206

1,525,578 1,313,461 1,575,627 1,785,904

Amounts due from subsidiaries and associate are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances and fixed deposits.

 Group  Institute
2012 2011 2012 2011

$ $ $ $

Interest bearing accounts 9,348,005 10,917,626 5,143,696 5,222,796
non-interest bearing accounts 7,001,454 6,173,750 2,461,574 2,210,284

16,349,459 17,091,376 7,605,270 7,433,080
less: Fixed deposit pledged (15,120) (15,067) – –

As per statements of cash flows 16,334,339 17,076,309 7,605,270 7,433,080

Included in interest bearing accounts of the Group and Institute are fixed deposits totaling $8,241,086 (2011: 
$9,928,543) and $4,036,777 (2011: $4,233,713) respectively which are placed for varying periods of between 1 to 
12 months (2011: 1 to 12 months) depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group and the Institute 
and earn interest of 0.05% to 1.25% (2011: 0.19% to 0.85%) per annum. Fixed deposit of $15,120 (2011: $15,067) 
is pledged to bank for banking facilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

18 Provisions 

Provision for dismantlement, removal and restoration costs has been recognised as a consequence of lease 
arrangement entered into during the year for its office and training premises.

Movements in provisions are as follows:

 Group
2012 2011

$ $

At beginning of year – –
Provision made 175,800 –

At end of year 175,800 –

19 Trade and other payables

 Group  Institute
2012 2011 2012 2011

$ $ $ $

Trade payables
- third parties 893,300 1,541,610 623,603 1,121,100
- related parties 6,000 – 1,105 –
Amounts due to (non-trade)
- subsidiary – – 1,293 2,957
- associate – 3,605 – 3,605
Accrued operating expenses 2,962,118 3,223,976 2,202,510 2,451,207

3,861,418 4,769,191 2,828,511 3,578,869

Amounts due to a subsidiary and associate are non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on 
demand.

20 Miscellaneous fund

 Community Service Project Fund

The fund is made up of donations from members, money from fund-raising projects and contributions from the 
Institute. It is used for the Institute’s community service projects and is made up as follows:

 Group & Institute
2012 2011

$ $

At beginning of year 54,307 32,798
Add: Donations from members, representing surplus for the year 16,627 21,509

At end of year 70,934 54,307



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

21 Related party transactions

(a)  In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the following transactions took 
place between the Group/Institute and related parties during the financial year on terms agreed by the 
parties concerned:

 Group  Institute
2012 2011 2012 2011

$ $ $ $

lecturers’ fees paid to related parties 44,480 – 44,480 –
Professional fees paid to related parties 27,000 – 27,000 –
Printing and stationery expenses paid 

to related parties 17,592 – 4,630 –

  Related parties comprise firms and companies which are controlled or significantly influenced by certain 
Council Members of the Institute.

(b) Key management personnel compensation comprise:

 Group  Institute
2012 2011 2012 2011

$ $ $ $

Short-term employee benefits 1,454,518 1,292,873 1,122,974 923,468
Contributions to CPF 64,778 59,853 42,861 40,066

1,519,296 1,352,726 1,165,835 963,534

22 Commitments

 (i) Capital commitments

  Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet date but not recognised in the financial statements is 
as follows:

 Group  Institute
2012 2011 2012 2011

$ $ $ $

Capital commitments in respect of 
property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets – 264,260 – 264,260

 (ii) Operating lease commitments

The Group and the Institute lease properties and office equipment from non-related parties under non-
cancellable operating lease agreements. These leases have an average tenure of between one to five years, 
varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal options. 

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases at balance sheet date are as follows:

 Group  Institute
2012 2011 2012 2011

$ $ $ $

Within one year 2,339,482 777,027 948,098 441,806
After one year but within five years 4,499,142 309,499 1,044,351 109,532
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

23 Financial instruments

 a) Categories of financial instruments

 Group  Institute
2012 2011 2012 2011

$ $ $ $

Financial assets
loans and receivables 

(including cash and cash equivalents) 17,643,758 18,096,256 9,054,663 8,978,328

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost 3,423,193 4,417,781 2,510,901 3,341,038

 b) Financial risk management

  Credit risk

  The main risks arising from the Group’s financial management are interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk 
and foreign currency risk. The Group reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they 
are summarised below:

  Interest rate risk

  The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing fixed 
deposits. The sensitivity analysis for changes in interest rate is not disclosed as the effect on income or 
expenditure is considered not significant.

  The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from the failure of a customer or a counterparty to settle its 
financial and contractual obligations to the Group, as and when they fall due. The Group manages this risk 
by monitoring credit periods and limiting the aggregate financial exposure to any individual counterparty.

 The Group places its cash and fixed deposits with banks and financial institutions which are regulated.

 The credit risk is as follows:

 i) Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

   bank deposits that are neither past due nor impaired are mainly deposits with banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies. Trade receivables that are neither past due 
nor impaired are substantially companies and individuals with a good collection track record with the 
Group.

 ii) Financial assets that are past due but not impaired

   There is no other class of financial assets that is past due and/or impaired except for trade receivables.

  The age analysis of trade receivables past due but not impaired is as follows:

 Group  Institute
2012 2011 2012 2011

$ $ $ $

Past due 0 to 3 months 359,699 169,581 358,370 155,845
Past due 3 to 6 months 60,363 80,344 60,363 57,574
Past due over 6 months 47,543 355,075 25,703 236,525

467,605 605,000 444,436 449,944



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2012

23 Financial instruments (cont’d)

 b) Financial risk management (cont’d)

  Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and bank balances 
deemed adequate by the Management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of 
fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group targets for available funds in the form of surplus liquidity and aims at maintaining flexibility in 
funding by keeping committed and uncommitted credit lines available.

  The Group’s and Institute’s financial liabilities mature within 1 year from the balance sheet date and the 
contractual undiscounted cash flows approximate the carrying amounts.

 
  Foreign currency risk

  The Group’s foreign currency risk results mainly from cash flows and transactions denominated in foreign 
currencies. It is the Group’s policy not to enter into derivative forward foreign exchange contracts for hedging 
and speculative purposes.

  The Group has no significant financial assets and liabilities held in foreign currency.

 c) Fair value

  The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair values because of the short 
period to maturity.

24 Fund management

The Institute’s objectives when managing its funds are to safeguard its ability to maintain adequate working capital 
to continue as going concern, to promote its objective to lead, develop and support accountancy professionals in 
Singapore and uphold the public interest and these objectives remain unchanged from previous year.

25 Authorisation of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the financial statements of the Institute for the financial 
year ended 31 December 2012 were authorised for issue by the Council on 26 February 2013.
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notice is hereby given that in accordance with Article 77 of the Constitution of the Institute, the Annual General 
Meeting 2012/2013 of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore will be held on Saturday, 27 April 
2013 at 2.00 pm, at Marina Mandarin, Marina Mandarin ballroom, level 1, 6 Raffles boulevard, Marina Square, 
Singapore 039594.

AGENDA

1 President’s address.

2 To confirm the minutes of the Annual General Meeting 2011/2012 of Members held on 28 April 2012.

3 To receive the Report of the Council for the year 2012/2013 and Accounts of the Institute for the year ended 
31 December 2012.

4 To elect eight members to the Council in accordance with Article 32 comprising:

(a) At least three CPAs Singapore who are Public Accountants to hold office for a term of two years;

(b) At least three CPAs Singapore who are not Public Accountants to hold office for a term of two years.

The following members of the Council shall retire in accordance with the provisions of Articles 48 to 50 of the 
Constitution:

CPAs Singapore who are Public Accountants CPAs Singapore who are not Public Accountants
Peter Chay Fook Yuen Ho Tuck Chuen
Don Ho Mun-Tuke Ho Yew Kee 
Max loh Khum Whai Tan boen Eng
Sitoh Yih Pin Yim Kam May

nominations have been received for the following:

CPAs Singapore who are Public Accountants Nominated by
Paul lee Seng Meng lim lee Meng

Teo Cheow Tong
How beng Tiong
Kaka Singh
Chee Yoh Chuang

Max loh Khum Whai Purandar Rao
Tan Peck Yen
low bek Teng
lim Tze Yuen
Wee Hiang bing

Ong Pang Thye Tan Wah Yeow
Eng Chin Chin
lee Jee Cheng Philip
lee Sze Yeng
leong Kok Keong

Tan Khoon Guan Yin Kum Choy
Gilbert Tiong Tak Giew
lim Wee Chiang Edwin
Jason lee
Chin Ee lin
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CPAs Singapore who are not Public Accountants Nominated by
Chan Hon Chew Yee Chen Fah

Quek bin Hwee
Soh Kok leong
Sim Hwee Cher
Ong Chao Choon

Ho Tuck Chuen Soo Chee Kong
leong Wai Kin
Tan Chin Huat
Chee Wan Chin
Chee lee Fong

Ho Yew Kee Chng Chee Kiong
Ruth Tan Seow Kuan
Alfred loh lye Chye
Keung Ching Tung
Kwek Ai lin Angeline

lee Wai Fai Chan Yoke Meng
Yeo lee Kian
lim Hwee Hwee
Tan Chin Poh
Khoo Hui Joo

5 To re-appoint Messrs baker Tilly TFW llP as Auditors of the Institute for the financial year ending  
31 December 2013 and to authorise the Council to fix their remuneration. 

6 To consider, and if thought fit, pass by special resolution that:

(a) the name of the Institute be changed to “Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants” and the 
name “Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants” be substituted for “Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants of Singapore” in so far as it is necessary for preserving the effect of the Constitution or any 
written rules or documents whenever the latter name appears as such (the “Change of Name”); and

(b) the Constitution of the Institute be amended in the manner and to the extent as set out in the Appendix 
enclosed with this notice (the “Amendment”),

 and that the Change of name and the Amendment shall take effect from such date as the Council shall 
determine.

by order of the Council

JAnET TAn
Secretary
2 April 2013

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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Date:     Saturday, 28 April 2012
Time:     2.00pm
Venue:     Marina Mandarin ballroom

Total number of members present
CPAs Singapore:   467
Associates:     39
     506

Chairman and President:  Dr Ernest Kan
Secretary:     Ms Janet Tan

1. NOTICE OF MEETING
 The notice of meeting, having been circulated to members before the meeting, was taken as read. 

2. ADVISER’S ADDRESS
 ICPAS Adviser Mr Teo Ser luck, Minister of State for Trade and Industry, addressed the members and shared 

about the strategic development and goals of the Institute.

 The Adviser spoke about the progress made by the Institute. He shared that the transformation is an on-going 
process and emphasised his commitment to contribute to the process, and to bring more value to members.

 The Adviser also said the accountancy sector is a key component of Singapore’s professional services industry.  
As the national accountancy body representing the sector, the Institute has an important role to play in 
developing the accountancy sector as well as positioning Singapore as a regional and global accountancy hub. 

 In the last few years, ICPAS has been gearing up for this development. last year, ICPAS  amended its Constitution 
to be consistent with that of a professional accountancy body with a global membership, outlook and standing. 

 Some of the constitutional amendments pertain to governance and leadership renewal. This year, seven new 
members came onboard the ICPAS Council, which meant that more than one-third of the ICPAS Council 
comprised of new members. The incoming Council Members are leading professionals from diverse industries, 
including big Four and Mid-Tier firms and MnCs. The youngest Council Member is in her late 20s. The 
injection of fresh leadership talent would bring about renewed dynamism for the Institute.

 The Institute has also reformed its organisational structure, creating new divisions to support its strategic goals.  
It is now ready for the next phase – transformation, a period of active, progressive change that will have deep 
impact on the profession and sector. 

 To help ICPAS achieve its goals, the Adviser posed three challenges for the Institute:

 I)  Spearhead productivity movement within accountancy sector
  The Adviser said that ICPAS has a lot of potential to help the accountancy sector. In recent years, Singapore 

has been focused on increasing productivity to align with the growth of gross domestic product and 
business sectors. It is also critical due to the tightening of labour. Firms must relook their business model 
and increase productivity with less manpower- through automation, data communication and innovation, 
for example.  Accounting as a professional service is an integral function to enable productivity in client 
firms. ICPAS can take the lead in creating different programmes on productivity. ICPAS can work with 
SPRInG, Ministry of Trade and Industry (MTI) or Ministry of Finance (MOF) on programmes that help 
accounting firms, finance departments and accounting professionals to be more productive. ICPAS can 
initiate this movement within the accounting sector. It is an important national role.
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 II)  A member-centric ICPAS, focussed on social development 
  ICPAS has done much to improve the technical expertise of members. Moving forward, ICPAS can be a 

more member-centric organisation, striking a balance between professional development and the social 
aspects. The social aspects should go beyond networking opportunities, to enable and recognise talents. 
The objective is for members to gain professional recognition  as well as create social bonding and deep 
rootedness with ICPAS and the accounting fraternity. 

 III)  Council and leadership renewal in ICPAS 
  The Adviser commended the Chairman and the Council for recognising the need to introduce new talents. 

The Institute must encourage and appeal to the fraternity for new and younger talents to step forward and 
contribute to the profession, and embrace different viewpoints and opinions. ICPAS must take charge of 
the renewal process and introduce new and younger faces to the Council.

  It is also important to gain the support and acceptance of the fraternity that a Council with a good mix 
in terms of age, background and experience will help drive the accountancy sector forward.  Sound 
succession planning enables stability, which augurs well for future developments.

  At the same time, the wisdom of senior members within the Council must be recognised. The Adviser 
emphasised that senior members who had contributed or can still continue to contribute must not be 
neglected. The Institute should continue to tap on their wisdom and include them as part of a network of 
resources, such as to form an advisery panel. 

3. PRESIDENT’S ADDRESS
 The Chairman welcomed all members present at the Institute’s Annual General Meeting, which saw a record 

turnout of about 500 members. The Chairman proceeded to give an account of the Institute’s achievements over 
the past 12 months, and the strategic plan that will be the blueprint to guide the Institute’s growth. 

 Over the past 12 months, the Institute intensified the efforts to develop its infrastructure and re-aligned its 
strategic direction. This is a period of reform. The Institute worked at ensuring that it had the right structure 
and internal capabilities to meet its growth plans. With this firm foundation in place, the Institute began 
focusing on cementing new partnerships, and forming strategic alliances with key stakeholders.  

 One of the most significant developments for the Institute in 2011 was the amendments to its Constitution. 
In view of the goal to develop into a global body, the Institute carried out an extensive strategic review of its 
Constitution, during which views of key stakeholders were sought. Members’ consent was then sought on the 
proposed Constitutional amendments at an extraordinary general meeting in August. 

 Close to 90% of the members present at the meeting voted in support of the amendments. This has also received 
very positive coverage in mainstream media such as The Straits Times and business Times. The Chairman and 
Council members are heartened by this resoundingly positive mandate, which confirms strong support for the 
direction the Institute is taking.

 These Constitutional changes represented enhancements to the Institute’s existing governance arrangements, 
and touched on areas such as composition and mode of electing Council members, tenure of the leadership 
team, appointment of a nominations Committee and an Audit Committee, as well as membership classification. 

 The carefully-calibrated changes in the ICPAS Constitution are aligned with the recommendations of the 
Committee to Develop the Accountancy Sector (CDAS) to strengthen the Institute’s governance structure. The 
changes were consistent with those of other professional accountancy bodies boasting a global membership, 
outlook and standing. With the amended Constitution, the Institute has a strengthened constitutional 
framework that facilitates its future development on the international arena.
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 laying the foundation for expansion, ICPAS revised its organisational structure. In particular, two new 
divisions were established–  (1) Policy & Strategic Planning, and (2) Industry Development, and consolidated 
functions under two other divisions, Technical Knowledge Centre and Quality Assurance division and  Exams 
and Qualification division. 

 The Policy & Strategic Planning division will help spearhead policy development for the profession at national 
and global levels. The Industry Development division will work to engage key stakeholders, including the 
small and medium practitioners (SMPs). The two divisions will also focus on fortifying ties with international 
counterparts, and leverage upon the expertise and experience of established international bodies to raise 
technical excellence and bring greater value to members. 

 The Technical Knowledge Centre and Quality Assurance division encompasses Technical Standards 
Development & Advisery, Practice Monitoring, Quality Assurance and our subsidiary Singapore Institute 
of Accredited Tax Professionals. The Exams and Qualification division will administer the post-university 
qualification programme and other professional qualifications.     

 All that the Institute does boils down to creating value for members. Only by helping members succeed as CPAs 
Singapore can ICPAS succeed as the national accountancy body. 

 Keeping up to date and acquiring new skills is vital for accounting professionals. Over the past 12 months, 
the Institute championed many technical seminars and thought leadership forums, including the ICPAS CFO 
Forum, ICPAS-SMu CEO Forum and ICPAS Pre-budget Roundtable, just to name a few. 

 One of the signature events was the Singapore Accountancy Convention 2011, which brought together a record 
number of some 30 distinguished thought leaders from across the globe. More than 1,000 delegates and guests 
attended the gala dinner and convention held on the 3 and 4 november 2011 respectively. The privilege of having 
Minister of State for Finance and Transport, Mrs Josephine Teo, and Minister of State for Trade and Industry 
and ICPAS Adviser, Mr Teo Ser luck, as the guests of honour for the convention and dinner underscores the 
importance of ICPAS as the national accountancy body.

 At the last AGM, one of the websites launched was the ICPAS Jobs Portal, a one-stop shop for recruiters and 
jobseekers in accountancy and business. The ICPAS Jobs Portal started out with about 300 registered candidates 
and 200 job listings. 

 As of April 2012, the number of registered candidates has grown by more than five times to more than 1,600, 
and about four times the number of job listings at 800 listings, as well as more than 100 registered recruiters 
actively using the site to fill vacancies.   

 In the area of professional development, the ICPAS CPE department rolled out the Structured Audit Core 
Training (SACT) matrix last year. The SACT provided a holistic and systematic framework to aid the 
development of SMPs. This was done through the formalisation of best practices in audit planning, audit 
testing, audit completion and audit reporting. The Institute collaborated with leading university professors to 
develop the matrix and worked with industry practitioners to deliver Audit CPE seminars based on the training 
objectives. 

 The Institute also rolled out the Quality Assurance Framework for SMPs, aimed at raising the quality of SMPs 
in their auditing work. The framework provided a holistic, structured and member-oriented approach by 
providing support to SMPs in terms of technical advice, training, counselling, mentoring as well as recognition 
of best practices.
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 The infrastructure aimed to enhance the quality of accounting and auditing work conducted by SMPs. At the 
same time, it reinforced Singapore’s position as a reputable and trusted business and financial centre.  

 SMP Development is a key strategic focus for the Institute. Following the IFAC SMP Forum, the Institute 
organised the ICPAS SME-SMP Forum to help small and medium enterprises (SMEs) and SMPs address 
challenges in talent management, technology, productivity and sustained growth. Themed How to Grow Amidst 
Market Challenges, the event, which was officiated by ICPAS Adviser Mr Teo Ser luck, drew a full-capacity 
crowd of more than 300 attendees. 

 The Institute’s Education Arm, SAA Global Education, continued to build the talent pipeline, and catered 
to close to 6,000 students from the region.  In October last year, SAA-GE was awarded the full EduTrust 
Certification by the Council for Private Education. This was in recognition of the school’s efforts to provide 
higher standards of private education and maintain robust academic systems and processes. In February, Spring 
Singapore awarded SAA-GE its Singapore Quality Class (SQC) certification, for overall business excellence. 
The school’s efforts to drive operational and academic excellence have been recognised by national agencies. 
The Chairman commended the SAA-GE leadership team, especially Mr Evan law who had been heading the 
school, and all staff for their good work. 

 building the CPA Singapore brand continues to be an integral part of the Institute’s strategy to deliver member 
value. last year, the Institute rolled out the Catalyst for Success brand campaign promoting the CPA Singapore 
designation as a trusted mark of professionalism, expertise and integrity. 

 As the saying goes, “the proof of the pudding is in the eating”. A strong testament that ICPAS is delivering 
member value is the growing membership base. In 2011, membership grew by 7.5% over the previous year and 
the Institute has close to 25,000 members, which solidifies our position as the largest professional body in the 
country. 

 Over the past 12 months, ICPAS continued to actively engage with international organisations and participate 
in global events to foster a worldwide network and raise our international profile. 

 In november, the Chairman represented the Institute to attend the International Federation of Accountants 
(IFAC) Council Meeting in berlin, Germany. At the meeting, he was invited by IFAC as a guest speaker, to 
provide a regional perspective on regulatory developments in the Asia-Pacific region as part of panel discussion. 
The speaking engagement helped to promote ICPAS and Singapore on the global stage.  

 At the regional level, ICPAS has a longstanding involvement in the ASEAn Federation of Accountants (AFA) 
and regularly participates in the AFA Council Meetings to discuss issues pertaining to the profession in the 
region. 

 ICPAS also forged closer relations with other professional accountancy bodies. The Institute partnered with the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW) to develop a programme for non-Executive 
Directors in Singapore, aimed at equipping existing and aspiring directors with the latest international best 
practices and local regulatory requirements. ICPAS and ICAEW also jointly hosted the ICPAS-ICAEW 
European Commission Green Paper on Audit Policy Forum in September last year. 

 last August, ICPAS collaborated with the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (CIMA) to offer 
Certificates in Islamic Finance. The certificate programmes will equip participants with the know-how to tap 
on the growing Islamic Finance market.

MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2011/2012

Moving with the Times

97Annual Report 2012/2013



 In March, the Institute co-hosted the IFAC SMP Forum with the International Federation of Accountants. 
Over 200 delegates from 40 professional accountancy organisations in 36 countries convened in Singapore 
for the forum. This year’s event featured a keynote address by Ms. Jessica Tan, Chairman of the Government 
Parliamentary Committee for Finance and Trade & Industry in Singapore, and speakers from the Singapore 
business Federation (SbF) and Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (ACRA) of Singapore. 

 Delegates from IFAC member bodies convened with representatives from the regulatory community, leading 
regional business associations, and international standard setters to discuss challenges facing the SMP sector 
and to collaborate on the solutions on a global level. Plenary panel session topics included shaping regulations 
and standards and how SMPs can capitalise on emerging opportunities in an ever-changing marketplace.

 The next stage for ICPAS is to prepare for transformation. The Policy and Strategic Planning Division, together 
with the other divisions, has rolled out a revitalised vision and strategy for the Institute. The revitalised Strategic 
Plan builds upon the AIM strategic objectives first unveiled in 2009. 

 The Plan stated clearly the Institute’s vision: to be a globally recognised professional body, to bring value to 
members, the profession and the wider community. 

 The Institute’s mission statements are as follows:

 To create a Dynamic Institute:
 To be proactive, innovative, responsive, forward-looking, optimistic and positive in addressing issues. 

 To develop a Vibrant Profession:
 To develop a vibrant accountancy profession with diverse and rich talents, meaningful and interesting career 

options, and an influential membership base which can make impactful contributions to the economy and 
society at large. 

 To build a bold ICPAS:
 To be steadfast, resolute and focused in our engagement with stakeholders. 

 Guiding decisions and how the Institute behaves as an organisation will be the core values, namely:
 
 Teamwork:  To support each other and work together to achieve success.
 Integrity:   To be responsible, truthful and ethical in all we do.
 Progressive:  To be proactive and anticipate change with an open mind and leverage it as an opportunity to 

improve.
 Excellence:  To strive for the highest standards in all we do.
 Empathy:   To understand and be sensitive and caring to the needs and concerns of fellow colleagues and 

members of the Institute and the public. 

 The Institute aims to create the following desired outcomes:

 1. Technical Excellence
 2. Strong Support from Key Stakeholders
 3. An Empowered Membership
 4. An Influential Voice in Global Alliance network
 5. Strong brand Equity
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 The Chairman emphasised that these desired outcomes, however, will take time to formulate and will not 
be fully realised within a year. In setting out the growth strategy for ICPAS, the Institute takes a long-term 
perspective. These two years is the first phase of transformation. In the third quarter of this year, the Institute 
will kick-start the process of defining its strategic direction for 2013 to 2015, or what will be the Phase 2 of 
transformation. 

 In the subsequent years leading up to 2020, ICPAS will implement Phase 3 of its transformation, which will be 
the final phase of development into a full-fledged global accountancy body.  

 The Chairman thanked ICPAS Adviser, Mr Teo Ser luck, for his wise counsel over the last 12 months. He 
thanked the Executive Committee and Council Members for providing guidance and direction that has enabled 
ICPAS to grow from strength to strength. 

 The Chairman expressed his heartfelt thanks and appreciation to the Council Members who are stepping down 
after the AGM, Ms Wong lai Yong, Mr lim boon Cheng, Mr Gerard Ee and Mr Khoo Ho Tong. They have 
made many contributions to the Institute and the development of the profession. The Chairman welcomed the 
incoming Council Members Mr Frankie Chia, Mr Michael Chin, Ms Genevieve Chua, Mr Vincent lim, Ms 
Danielle Yew, Ms lim Kexin, and Mr Max loh. 

 The Chairman thanked the members of various ICPAS Committees, who are busy professionals volunteering 
their time, for their dedicated service to the profession, and the ICPAS management team and staff for their 
hard work. 

 In closing, the Chairman said the Institute seeks members’ continued support of the Institute as it strives to help 
members succeed as CPAs Singapore. 

4.  CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2010/2011 AND 
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING 2011

 4.1  The minutes of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) 2010/2011 held on 16 April 2011, and Extraordinary 
General Meeting on 27 August 2011, having been circulated to all members, were taken as read.

 4.2  On the proposal of Mr Andrew Kuan Yoke loon and as seconded by Ms Tan Geok Wah, the minutes of 
AGM 2010/2011 and EGM were approved.

 4.3  The Chairman then polled the members present on the confirmation of the minutes. From the poll results, 
the Chairman declared that the minutes had been confirmed. 

5.  ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2011/2012
 5.1  The Chairman referred the members to the Annual Report (report) of the Council for the year 2011/2012 

and the Accounts for the Institute for the year ended 31 December 2011 and invited comments from 
the members present. The Chairman added that as the annual report had been previously circulated to 
members, it would be considered as read. 

 5.2  Mr loh Cheng Tuan Malcolm, CPA Singapore, noticed there were 3 Council Members who attended only 
2 of the 9 Council meetings of the year and asked if they were able to uphold their commitment to the 
Council in the coming year. 
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  The Chairman replied the Council is made up of dedicated members of good standing. After the Council 
members had been elected, some Council members may have taken on additional responsibilities from 
work or required to travel extensively for business, however, the Council Members remained committed 
to the Institute. In addition, the Council members are also responsible in ensuring they are able to fulfil 
their commitment before continuing with their term.

  Treasurer, Mr Steven Phan said the Institute also reached out to Council Members who were unable to 
attend Council Meetings through other platforms, to ensure they are involved in the discussions and to 
contribute.

 5.3  Ms lo Wei Min @ Pearlyn Chong, CPA Singapore commented that since the establishment of Singapore 
Institute of Accredited Tax Professionals (SIATP), the Tax & levies Committee within ICPAS has been 
dissolved. She enquired how ICPAS would support members in the subject area of taxation as some ICPAS 
members were not SIATP members. She also enquired about the relationship between ICPAS and SIATP.

  The Chairman explained that SIATP is a subsidiary of ICPAS, set up in partnership with the Tax Academy 
of Singapore. SIATP was set up to raise the standards of tax practice. The Tax & levies Committee was 
moved to SIATP due to its specialised nature. For example, under the auspices of SIATP, the Tax & levies 
Committee held dialogues with the Inland Revenue Authority of Singapore (IRAS), which is in line with 
the objective of raising tax practice standards. 

  The Institute continues to carry out initiatives that are related to taxation and the wider industry and 
economic concerns such as the Pre-budget Roundtable. 

  The Chairman encouraged members who specialise in tax to join SIATP to benefit from the greater scope 
and depth of resources on taxation. 

 5.4  Mr Chan Wang Hon, CPA Singapore, enquired if he was still able to sign up for the members’ email 
account after having missed the deadline as he was away. 

  Acting CEO Mr Evan law replied that it will not be an issue and the Membership Manager will get in 
contact with Mr Chan after the AGM.

 5.5  Mr Tan See Peng, CPA Singapore, expressed his appreciation for new candidates who have stepped up to 
join the Council. He enquired what feedback channels are available to members. He enquired if a resource 
panel of experts can be formed for members to seek consultation from. He also enquired under the new 
Constitution, whether the membership classification of practising or non-practising had been abolished, 
if the mode of voting allows for all membership categories to vote across categories, instead of following 
the previous system where practising or non-practising members voted within their membership 
classification. 

  The Chairman replied that indeed the membership classification of practising or non-practising has been 
abolished. Therefore voting is not restricted to within membership classification. For example, if there 
were to be an election for a position in Council, all CPAs Singapore are able to vote for their candidate of 
choice. 

  The Chairman agreed that feedback channel and channels of engagement are important and the 
management is looking into developing more platforms.

  With regard to the resource panel of experts, Acting CEO explained that new initiatives will be introduced 
in the coming months. These include pro bono technical clinics, online forums for discussions and 
members queries, and greater online support for members to pose technical queries. There has also been 
an increase in the number of focus groups engaging both members in practice and members in business. 
The Acting CEO looked forward to members’ participation of the new initiatives. 
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 5.6  Mr Kwa Teow Huat Philip, CPA Singapore, commented that ICPAS could set up an information technology 
(IT) committee to help members upgrade their IT knowledge. 

  The Acting CEO replied that as an example, one of the tasks of the newly-formed Industry Development 
division in ICPAS is to look into a common platform for practise management software, and the Institute 
is in discussion with software firms to lease practise management software to members on a low-cost 
basis. The Institute is also in talks with Singapore Workforce Development Agency (WDA) and Infocomm 
Development Authority of Singapore (IDA) to discuss initiatives which can help members fund their IT 
infrastructure and upgrades. 

 5.7  As no further matters were raised, the Annual Report of the Institute 2011/2012 and the Accounts of the 
Institute for the year ended 31 December 2011 were received by the meeting, as proposed by Mr lim boon 
Seng Vincent and seconded by Mr loh Hoon Sun.

6.  ELECTION OF COUNCIL MEMBERS
 6.1  The Chairman informed that the following members of the Council had retired in accordance with the 

provisions of Articles 48 to 50 of the Constitution:

  CPAs Singapore who are Public Accountants:

  Dr Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong
  Mr Khoo Ho Tong
  Mr lim boon Cheng
  Mr Yeoh Oon Jin

  CPAs Singapore who are not Public Accountants:
  
  Mr Ramasamy Dhinakaran
  Mr Gerard Ee Hock Kim
  Ms Jeann low ngiap Jong
  Ms Frances Wong lai Yong

 6.2.  As only 8 nominations have been received from CPAs Singapore in accordance with Article 50 of the 
Constitution, these 8 CPAs Singapore are deemed to be duly elected members of the Council for a two-year 
term as from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting. They are:

  CPAs Singapore who are Public Accountants:

  Mr Frankie Chia Soo Hien
  Mr Michael Chin Sek Peng
  Dr Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong
  Mr Yeoh Oon Jin

  CPAs Singapore who are not Public Accountants:

  Ms Genevieve Chua Kwee Huay
  Mr Ramasamy Dhinakaran
  Mr lim boon Seng
  Ms Jeann low ngiap Jong
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7.  APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS
 7.1  The re-appointment of Messrs baker Tilly TFW llP as Auditors of the Institute for the financial year 

ending 31 December 2012 and the authorisation for the Council to fix their remuneration was approved, 
as proposed by Mr Jerry lee Kian Eng and seconded by Mr John lim Geok Peng.

 7.2.  The Chairman then polled the members present on the confirmation of the appointment. From the poll 
results, the Chairman declared that the appointment had been confirmed. 

8.  TERMINATION OF MEETING
 In conclusion, the Chairman cited Rules 16 and 17 of the ICPAS (General Meetings) Rules which provided that 

no motion shall be discussed at any annual general meeting of the Institute unless the required notice of 28 days 
has been given. As the secretary had not received any notice and all items on the agenda had been dealt with, 
the meeting was formally declared closed at 3.30pm.

Signed as a correct record

Chairman
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING LUNCH REPLY FORM

[note: Registration can be done online at http://agm.icpas.org.sg/login.php
With online registration, you do not need to post this form.]

INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS OF SINGAPORE
20 Aljunied Road, #06-02 CPA House, Singapore 389805
Tel: (65) 6749 8060
Fax: (65) 6749 8061

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING LUNCH
lunch will be served at 12.45 pm, followed by the Annual General Meeting at 2.00 pm.  To assist the Secretariat in the 
lunch arrangements, please return this reply form to the Institute by 19 April 2013.

I will be attending the AGM lunch on Saturday, 27 April 2013, at 12.45 pm, at Marina Mandarin, Marina Mandarin 
Ballroom, Level 1, 6 Raffles boulevard, Marina Square, Singapore 039594.

Member’s name (in block): 

I/C number: 

Membership Category: * CPA Singapore (Public Accountant) / CPA Singapore / Associate

Company: 

Designation: 

Contact number: (Mobile)  (Office)  (Home)

E-mail address:  
(Confirmation of registration will be sent to this email address)

Date: 

Please tick if *Vegetarian/Muslim menu is required

note: The lunch menu will be ‘no pork, no lard’.

*Please delete where inapplicable.

nb: To avoid unnecessary costs to the Institute, please  
inform the Secretariat at least 3 days before the 
function if you have registered but subsequently 
are unable to attend the AGM lunch. Signature
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INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS OF SINGAPORE
20 ALJUNIED ROAD
#06-02 CPA HOUSE
SINGAPORE 389805

Stamp

Fold here

Fold here



INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS OF SINGAPORE
20 ALJUNIED ROAD
#06-02 CPA HOUSE
SINGAPORE 389805

FORM OF PROXY

THE SCHEDULE
Rule 33

THE INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
OF SINGAPORE (GENERAL MEETINGS) RULES

I,         , 

       (Full name in block)                  (nRIC/Passport number)

of 

(Address)

being a member of the Institute, do hereby appoint:
name Address nRIC /Passport number

or failing him/her
name Address nRIC /Passport number

each of whom is a CPA Singapore of ICPAS as my proxy to vote for me at the Annual General Meeting of the Institute 
to be held on 27 April 2013 and any adjournment of such meeting.

Signature of member:

 
Dated this                                      day of                  2013

NOTES: A member entitled to vote may appoint as his proxy any other member who is entitled to vote except that no member shall be entitled to 
vote by proxy in the election of a member or members of the Council. 

 [Rule 32, ICPAS (General Meetings) Rules]

 The proxy shall not be entitled to vote at a meeting unless the instrument of proxy has been deposited with the Chief Executive Officer not 
less than 48 hours before the date and time fixed for the meeting. 

 [Rule 36, ICPAS (General Meetings) Rules]
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